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Explanatory note showing reasons for delay in placing Audited accounts of Gujarat water
Resource Development Corporation Ltd., Gandhinagar for the year 2021-22 on the table of
Gujarat state assembly.

GujaratWaterResources Development Corporation Ltd., Gandhinagar was incorporated in the year
1971, under section 617 or the companies Act,1956/ under section 2 (45) of the companies Act,
2013 and activated in 1975 by obtaining certificate of commencement of business in august, 1975.
Since, the corporation was incorporated under the companies Act, powers to appoint statutory
Auditors to audit accounts of the corporation are given to the Comptroller & Auditor general of
India, New Delhi as per the provisions of companies Act.

Comptroller & Auditor general of India, New Delhi had appointed M/S SADP& Co.,
Chartered Accountants- Ahmedabad as statutory auditors vide their letter date 29/08/2022 to
audit the accounts of the corporation for the year 2021-22.

Statutory auditorsM/S SADP & Co., Chartered Accountants- Ahmedabad, accepted the
appointment as statutory auditors vide their letter dated 23/11/2022. Firm was informed to
intimate the programme of carrying out audit and to start the audit of accounts of the
corporation. Thereafter, corporation had communicated to statutory auditors to complete the
audit assignment.

M/S SADP & Co., Chartered Accountants- Ahmedabadhad completed the audit of accounts
for the year 2021-22. Accordingly, accounts for the year 2021-22 were approved by board of
directors in 244"meeting held on dated 21/07/2023 on the recommendation of the43 audit
committee in the meeting held on dated 21/07/2023 and on 31/07/2022, statutory auditors
had certified the accounts.

The final accounts of the corporation certified by the statutory auditor M/s.SADP & Co,
Rajkot as on 31/07/2023 had been submitted to Comptroller & Auditor general of India,
Rajkot for supplementary audit vide letter dated 04/08/2023. However, the Comptroller &
Auditor general of India office Rajkot, vide letter dated 13/09/2023 informed the decision
regarding non conduct of supplementary audit and has issued “non review certificate” to the
corporation.

Statutory audited accounts for the year 2021-22 the corporation, report of statutory auditors,
final comments of comptroller & Auditor general of India on accounts and report of board of
directors were approved in the meeting of board of directors held on date 21/09/2023.

Thereafter, accounts of the corporation for the year 2021-22 were adopted by share holders
of the corporation in annual general meeting held on date 21/09/2023 and the same are
submitted herewith to place before the table of legislative assembly.

As per above details, audited accounts of the corporation for the year 2021-22 are
delayed in placing on the table of legislative assembly, which may please be considered.

Sd-
(K.B.Rabadia)
Special Secretary (Water Resources)
N.W.R.W.S and Kalpasar Dept.
Sachivalaya, Gandhinagar
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Gujarat Water Resources Devolvement Corporation Ltd. Gandhinagar.

Report of the Government of Gujarat under section 395 of companies Act, 2013 on Working of
Gujarat Water Recourses Development Corporation Ltd. for the Year ended on dt.31-03-2022.

Gujarat Water Recourses Development Corporation Ltd. was incorporated on dt.3-5-19971 under
section 617 of the companies Act, 1956/under section 2(45) of the companies Act, 2013- and in
1975-76, Government had decided to activate the corporation. Accordingly, corporation had started
its business by obtaining certificate of commencement of business on dt.7th August, 1975.
Corporation is wholly owned public sector undertaking of Government. Corporation had carried out
following activities during the year 2021-22.

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

Ground Water investigation Which includes geophysical survey, study of aquifer parameters,
water quality / level measurements, survey through Piezometers, chemical analysis of water
samples, mechanical analysis of soil and strata samples, preparation of recharge and
conservation maps, data collection, ground water drawal and its impact on water quality and
research and development activities etc. works assigned by Government of Gujarat.

The corporation had undertaken the works of Sujalam Sufalam Yojana entrusted by
Government of Gujarat which mainly includes construction of distribution network,
dewatering Work and maintenance and repairs of pipelines and pumping stations
constructed under Sujalam Sufalam Yojana.

Government of Gujarat has entrusted to the corporation, all the Works of lift irrigation
schemes and the Works related to drip irrigation on tube wells operated by the corporation/
farmers’ group/ co-operative societies.

Drilling of tube wells and Construction of Lift irrigation schemes in different areas of state
as per the schemes approved by the state Government, maintenance and repairs of tub wells
and lift irrigation schemes, supply of water to the irrigation at the rates fixed by Government
of Gujarat from time to time, hiring tube wells to farmers’ groups/co-operative societies and
maintenance of stores and Workshops to cater the Services of the Works carried out.

Construction of tube wells and lift irrigation schemes on agency basis under Gujarat pattern,
D.R.D.A., Dug well under PMKSY-HKKP-GW Irrigation scheme, Atal Bhujal Yojana and
other deposit Works.

Detailed information about Various Works carried out during the year 2021-22 by
the corporation are included in enclosed reports of Board of Directors. Statutory audit of the
corporation for the year 2021-22 has been carried out by M/S SADP & Co., Chartered
Accountants- Ahmedabad (Rgn. N0.112625W) as appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor
General of India, New Delhi and supplementary audit as required by companies Act, 2013
has been carried out by the office of controller General of India, Rajkot. Balance sheet of the
corporation as of 31.3.2022, profit and loss account for the year ended on that date, report of
statutory Auditors, comments on accounts of comptroller and Auditor General are enclosed
here with.

Sd-
(K. B. Rabadia)
Special Secretary (Water Resources)
N.W.R.W.S and Kalpasar Dept.
Sachivalaya, Gandhinagar



GUJARAT WATER RESOURCES DEVELOPMNET CORPORATION LIMITED

éh GANDHINAGAR.
Near Seeds Corporation Sector-10-A Gandhinagar-382010
Telephone No: 079- 23252058/23252060.
E-mail : gwrdc.gwrdc@gmial.com

Notice to the Members for 47hAdjourned Annual General Meeting

NOTICE is hereby given that the 47"AdjournedAnnual General Meeting of the members of
Gujarat Water Resources Development Corporation Limited will be held on 21/09/2023at
15:45Hrsat the Head Office of Nigam, Nr. Bij Nigam, Sector — 10/A, Gandhinagar, Gujarat to
transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement (Standalone) of the
Company for the financial year ended on 31 March, 2022 together with the reports of Board of
Directors, Auditor and C&AG thereon.

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Gujarat Water Resources Development Corporation Limited

Sd/-
Date: 15/09/2023 (R. M. Patel)
Place: Gandhinagar Managing Director

NOTES:

1. The relevant Explanatory Statement pursuant to section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013
in respect of Special Business at the meeting, is annexed hereto and forms part of this notice.

2. A member entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on a
poll instead of himself and the proxy need not be a member of the Company.

3. Proxies in order to be effective must be received by the company not later than forty-eight
(48) hours before the meeting.

4. In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the
order of names will be entitled to vote at the Meeting.

5. Members are requested to bring to the meeting their attendance slips duly completed and
signed mentioning therein details.

6. Members seeking any information with regard to the Accounts are requested to write to the
Company at an early date, so as to enable the Management to keep the information ready at
the meeting.

7. An explanation to above items (1& 2) (Annexure-A) is appended herewith.



ANNEXURE A
EXPLANATION REGARDING THE ORDINARY BUSINESS
ITEM NO. 47/1:

TO RECEIVE, CONSIDER AND ADOPT THE AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENT
(STANDALONE) OF THE COMPANY FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 3157
MARCH 2022 TOGETHER WITH THE BOARD’S REPORTS, AUDITORS AND C&AG
THEREON:

As per provision of section 96 of the Companies Act, 2013, Annual General Meeting (AGM) of for
the F.Y. 2021-22 is required to hold within 6 (six) months from the end of Financial Year i.e. on or
before 30" September, 2022. As per provisions of the section 129 read with section 134 of the
Companies Act, 2013, Company is required to place audited financial statements for the F.Y. 2021-
22 along with report of the C&AG before the shareholders.

However, as the Accounts of the Company were not finalized and hence, report of C&AG was not
received, 47"Annual General Meeting was held on 03/09/2022 and the meeting was adjourned sine
die till receipt of final comments of C&AG on the Financial Statements for the F.Y. 2021-22.

The Accounts of the Financial Year 2021-221 were approved by the Board at Meeting held on
21/07/2023 and thereafter accounts along with report of the Statutory Auditors were submitted for
C&AG. C&AG has decided not to conduct audit on audited financial statements for the F.Y. 2021-
22 and C&AG vide letter no. TAKANIKI SAHAYOG CELL/S-2/ACCOUNTS/GWRDCL/2021-
22, OW 137, dated 13/09/2023 sent their Non Review Certificate. Therefore, 47"Adjourned AGM
is called by the Nigam with shorter notice.

Therefore, the members are requested to consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution,
with or without modifications, as an Ordinary Resolution:

PROPOSED RESOLUTION:

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Financial Statements (standalone) of the Company for the year
ended on 31% March, 2022 i.e. Balance Sheet as at 31% March 2022, Profit and Loss Account for the
period from 01/04/2021to 31/03/2022 along with schedules thereto, Significant Accounting Policies
and Notes to Accounts together with Board’s Report, Statutory Auditors Report and Report of
Comptroller and Auditor General of India, be and are hereby considered and adopted.”

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Gujarat Water Resources Development Corporation Limited

Date: 15/09/2023 >
ate. (R. M. Patel)
Place: Gandhinagar Managing Director



GUJARAT WATER RESOURCES DEVELOPMENT CORPORATOIN LIMITED

47™ Board’s Report of Gujarat Water Resources Development Corporation Limited
for the Year ending on 315t March, 2022

To,
The Members,
Gujarat Water Resources Development Corporation Limited

Gandhinagar

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting 47" Annual Report on the Business and Operations of
the Company and the accounts for the Financial Year ended on 31% March, 2022.

1. Financial Results:
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
(Rs. In Lakh) | (Rs. In Lakh)
Income
Operations Income
(1) Water Charges 3.71 4.96
(2) Tubewell/Lift irrigation schemes Hire charges 83.47 84.88
(3) Centage charges 119.11 264.16
(4) Other Income 20.23 6.57
Revenue from Operations (A) 226.52 360.57
Other Income
(1) Interest Income 304.61 579.91
(2) Other Non-operating income 54.62 212.54
(3) Tubewell/ Lift irrigation schemes Repairs & Maintenance 6475.57 2186.38
Subsidy
Total (B) 6834.80 2978.83
Total Revenue (A + B) 7061.32 3339.40
EXxpenses:
(1) Employee Benefits Expense 6297.87 2052.94
(2) Depreciation and Amortization Expense 13.97 16.12
(3) Financial Cost 364.82 524.03
(4) Other Expenses 306.64 336.12
Total Expenses 6983.30 2929.21
Profit before prior period adjustments, exceptional & 78.02 410.19
extraordinary items and tax
Less: Exceptional Items 0.00 0.00
prior period adjustments 12.76 0.82
Profit before tax (+) 90.78 (+)411.01
Tax expense:
Current Tax 0.00 0.00
Excess/Short Provision of earlier years 0.00 0.00
Deferred tax (-) 21.41 0.00
Profit (Loss) for the year (+) 112.19 (+) 411.01
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Details of Working of the Company during the year:

Details of Project related working of the Company during the year 2021-22 are kept as
Annexure — A.

Dividend:
Your directors do not recommend any dividend for the year ended on 31%March, 2022.
Reserves:

During the Financial Year 2021-22, company has profitof Rs. 78.02lakh (before prior period
adjustments).The said amount is shown under the head Reserve and Surplus Account.

Share Capital:

Authorized Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 40,00,00,000/- (Rupees Forty Crores)
divided into 4,00,00,00 (Fourty lakh) Equity shares of Rs.100/- each and issued, subscribed
& paidup share capital of the Company is Rs. 31,48,61,200/-divided into 31,48,612/- equity
shares of Rs.100/-each as on 31.03.2022.

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

From 01/04/2021 to till date of report, the changes that have been occurred in Board of
Directors as per orders of State Government are kept at ANNEXURE - B.

Particulars of Employees:

During the period under review the Company had no employees in receipt of remuneration
exceeding the limit prescribed, under section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

Meetings:
(A)  Board Meetings:
The details of Board Meetings convened and held during the F.Y. 2019-20 are as

below:

Sr. No. Board Meeting Date
1 235"Meeting 28.06.2021
2 236""Meeting 23.09.2021
3 237"Meeting 22.12.2021
4 238'"Meeting 01.01.2022

Audit Committee:

Following were the members of the Audit Committee as on 31.03.2022;

Sr. No. Name of Member Designation
1 Shri K. B. Rabadia Chairman
2 Shri R. M. Patel Member
3 Shri R. K. Joshi Member
4 Shri V. S. Patel Member
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11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

The details of Audit Committee Meetings convened and held during the year 2021-22 are as
below:

Sr. No. Audit Committee Meeting Date
1 38" Meeting 23.09.2021
2 39" Meeting 22.12.2021
3 40" Meeting 01.01.2022

Board Evaluation:

Appointments/Nominations of Board of Directors are made by the State Government. As per
the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India notification dated 05.06.2015,
Government Companies are exempted from the provision of sub-section 3 clause (p) of
section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013. Your company being a Government Company,
provision of Board Evaluation is not applicable.

Auditors’ Report and C&AG Report:
(A)  Auditors’ Report:

M/s S A D P& Co, were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company for the
F.Y. 2021-2022by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India. They have given
their Report on Financial Statements of the Company on 31/07/2023.

Management Replies to the qualifications of the Statutory Auditors are placed as
ANNEXURE - C.

(B) C & AG Report/Comments:

Company has received Non Review Certificate from C&AG vide letter dated
13/09/2023 on the Financial Statements for F.Y. 2021-22.

Internal Audit & Controls:

Internal Auditors, M/s. C. P. Jain & Co, Chartered Accountants, Ahmedabad’s Reports
findings were discussed and suitable corrective actions taken as per the directions on an
ongoing basis to improve efficiency in operations.

Extract of Annual Return:

As required pursuant to provision of Section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 11 of
the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, every company is required
to place copy of the Annual Return on the website of the Company. Website of the
Company is as follows: https://gwrdc.gujarat.gov.in

Material Changes and Commitments affecting Financial Position of the Company:

There are no material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of
the company during the year under review.

Significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals
impacting the going concern status of the Company:

During the year no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or
tribunals impacting the going concern status and company's operations in future.


https://gwrdc.gujarat.gov.in/

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments under Section186:

Details of Loans: NIL
Details of Investments: - NIL
Details of Guarantee / Security Provided: NIL

Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties:

Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties is Nil.

Corporate Social Responsibility(CSR):

Provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to your company.

Secretarial Audit Report:

Provisions of Secretarial Audit by the Practicing Company Secretaries as per requirements
of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to your Company.

Director’s Responsibility Statement:

The Directors’ Responsibility Statement referred to in clause (c) of sub-section (3) of
Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, shall state that—

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)
(€)

In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had
been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently
and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial
year and of the profit and loss of the company for that period,;

The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and
other irregularities;

The directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions
of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

Acknowledgements:

Your Directors express their warm wish to place on record their sincere appreciation to the
Co-Operation extended by the Government of Gujarat, C&AG, Statutory Auditors, Bankers,
Officers and staff of the Company for their co-operation during the year 2021-22 and look
forward for their continued support.

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors of

Gujarat Water Resources Development Corporation Limited

Sd/- Sd/-

Place : Gandhinagar (R. M. Patel) (K. B. Rabadia)
Date:- 21/09/2023 Managing Director Chairman



Boards’ Report

ANNEXURE INDEX

Annexure Content
A. Details of the Project related activities undertaken by the Company during the F.Y.
2021-22
B. Details of changes in Board of Directors from 01/04/2021 to till date of report
C. Management Reply to the Qualification of Statutory Auditor




Annexure — A

GUJARAT WATER RESOURCES DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LTD,
GANDHINAGAR

The Report Year-2021-22
CIVIL WING
1) Lift Irrigation Scheme

e During the year 2021-22, 727 Lift Irrigation Schemes were operated fir irrigation of
which, 25 Lift Irrigation Schemes were operated by corporation where as 702 Lift
Irrigation Schemes were under operation by Mandali/Juth.

e During the year 2021-22, 20382 hectare area was irrigated though total 727 lift
irrigation scheme operated by the corporation and Mandali/Juth.

(2)  Tubwells:

e During the year 2021-22, 2230 tube wells were working for irrigation, of which ,01
tube well was operated by corporation where as 2229 tube wells were operated by
Mandali/Juth.

e During the year 2021-22, 2230 tube wells operated by the corporation and
Mandali/juth irrigated 37004 hectares area.
(3) Drip Irrigation System:

e For economic and optimum utilization of water in irrigation Government has
recommended to implement Drip Irrigation System on tubewells operated by
Corporation and Mandali/Juth.

e The Drip Irrigation on total 886 tube wells with 8418 hectares of irrigation area have
been competed up to the year 2021-22

(4)  Work of Six(6) Pipe lines from Narmada Main Canal to Sujlam Suflam
Spreading canal:

Nos. of N
S Nos. of Irrigation | Recovery
Name of Pipeline pond pond Filled | (in Hect iR
Linked (in Hectare) | (in Rs.)
Jalundra Sujalam Sufalam Spreading
- 12 213.
Canal (Madhavgadh) pipe line Scheme 30 350 308500
Khorsam to SUJa!am §ufalam Spreading 14 04 34.32 53780
Canal (Matpur) pipe line scheme
Khorsam toSujalamSufalam Spreading
Canal(Matpur) pipe line Scheme 19 08 56.74 127400
Modhera-Dharoi 53 33 271.49 529380
Extended Kuda-Bhimpur 6 02 20.55 48000
Khorsam to SUngam_Sufalam Spreading 36 27 139,63 131000
Canal (Matpur)pipe line scheme.
Khorsam to sarswati pipe line scheme. 39 20 155.06 178700
Total 197 101 891.29 1376760




(5) Deposit work.

e Dewatering works under deposit work @ 8 sites have been undertaken. Works of worth
Rs.32.84 lakh have been done on above works.

(6) Dewatering activities

e Dewatering works under flood control have been undertaken at 7 sites in different location
for which expenditure of Rs.46.24 lakh has been incurred.

(7)  Submersible pump sets and vehicle repairing work:

e Total 44 job works at the cost of Rs.10.48lakh for various types/capacity of
vehicles/machineries/sub pumps/panel etc. has been carried out in departmental workshop.

Ground Water Investigation Geological Wing, Gandhinagar Yearly Report- 2021-22.

Gujarat State is the State facing Scarcity Position frequently. As they are a wise proportion of
rainfall is unequal frequent Scarcity in Gujarat State arises. Out of available water resource, usage
of water is about 88% for irrigation, 10% for household or for domestic use and 2% is for
industries. Out of water used for irrigation and domestic purpose, 78% is based on ground water.
Monitoring of ground water resources is necessary for effective management of ground water.Since
last about 40 years ,activities related to ground water investigation has been carried out by
geological wing of Gujarat water Resources Development Corporation limited for ground water
observation in different areas of the state. Details of activies are as under:-

Ground water level and ground water quality monitoring:

Due to various natural and human oriented factors, ground water level and quality are affected.
Ground water level monitoring is the main source to observe the effects on ground water. From
time to time ground water level and ground water quality are investigated for 1762 piezometers and
1495 Privately owned observation wells (978 district level observation wells + 517 observation
wells of Coastal areas)in different districts of Gujarat state. These data are used more for calculating
ground water estimates, planning of irrigation schemes, planning of ground water recharge
structure, research for students and evaluation in scarcity conditions etc.

: Four Times in a Year
Piezometers (Government) 1762
(January, May , August & October)
Observation Wells (Private) 1495 Twice in a year (May & October)

Effects of sea water intrusion on ground water in coastal areas:

Salinity ingress because of sea water intrusion in coastal areas have been occurred due to increased
usage of ground water in coastal areas of saurashtra and has created problems of salinity in ground
water. for study of the same, study has been undertaken by high level committee under the
chairmanship of them chief secretary and on the basis of recommendations, Geo wing of Gujarat
Water Resources Development Corporation has carried out study for effects of salinity on sea water
intrusion in ground water on earmarked observation wells twice in a year and in case of profile
tubewell, four times in a year and investigation of ground water level and samples of ground water
have been done and on that basis, technical report is prepared on the ground water position of sea
water and on the basis of proposed recommendations, different types of civil structures like
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checkdam, tidal regulator, Bandhara and spreading canal structures are constructed to control
salinity ingress in ground water of coastal areas. Every year, study of main four reaches per year in
carried out in the following areas of coastal reach of saurashtra.

Reach Linear distance (Km.) profiles Wells.
Bhavnagar — Una 245 31 265
Madhavpur - Okha 250 31 113
Okha — Maliya 100 12 46
Maliya — Lakhpat 120 10 52
Total 715 84 476

In above note, details about coastal reach areas are shown, for which, since 1985, irrigation
department is allotting funds. During the year 2021-22, amount of approx, 3 crores have been
disbursed.

Survey of new tube wells:

In Gujarat State, geological acquiters for storage of ground water are not equal. In different areas,
different type of acquiters having different qualities i-e alluvial, hard rock and soft rock exist in
which quantity and quality of ground water is not the same.To know the estimated availability and
quality of ground water in geological acquiters, sites are selected by GWRDC through ground water
survey on scientific basis before Contracting tubewells for irrigation. During the year 2021-22,
survey for new tubewells at 10 sites have been undertaken.

Ground water chemical analysis:

To verify whether ground water quality is proper for irrigation, analysis of 13 parameters is carried
out at laboratories at four locations in Gandhinagar, Kherva, Bhavnagar and Rajkot working under
the corporation. In Gujarat state, during the year 2021-22, chemical analysis of 11,288 samples of
ground water have been done.

Calculation of ground water assessments:

In Gujarat state, Geo wing working under Central Ground Water Board and Gujarat Water
Resources Development Corporation prepares time to time report of taluka wise assessment of
ground water as per the guidelines of expert committee constituted by Government of India and
submit the same to Central Government. Based on the ground water assessment, it is decided as
overexploited/critical/semi critical/safe relating to usage of ground water by each taluka.
Calculation of ground water estimation-2022 was jointly carried out.The work of finalizing its
report is under Progress.

National Hydrology Project:

The Hydrology Project is a 100% Centrally Sponsored project. It’s main object is to strengthen the
planning and management by increasing the scope of water related schemes by collecting the
information and reliable data.

» Implementation of National Hydrology project covering whole county is done by ministry of
water resources for the Period of the 8 years (2016-17 to 2023-24) In which amount of
Rs.142.50 crore for Gujarat ground water component and surface water Component, is
provided fully as grant in Phased manner.
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Under National Hydrology project, mainly the following activities are under taken:-

>

>
>

Activities of awarding Contract for Rs.7.39 crore of Digital Water recorders with Telemetry
(DWLR) for real time data collection on 453Peizometer constructed in over exploited,
critical and semi critical talukas in Gujarat State.

Installation of Digital water level Recorder with Telemetry (DWLR) for real time data
collection on 1083 Piezometer constructed in Safe and Saline types talukas of Gujarat State
and Piezometer maintenanceactivities of awarding contract of Rs. 14.07 crores.

Activities Site selection for Construction of 311 new Piezometer.

Activities related to bids of Installation of Digital water level Recorder with Telemetry
(DWLR) for Real time data collection on new 311 Piezometer.

Activities of developing Mobile water quality van by purchasing vehicle for investigation of
ground water quality.

Activities of Hiring of Experts for tasks of related Project.

Training and Capacity building.

Atal Bhujal Yojana:

>

>

The object of this program is mainly to stimulate strengthening ground water management
and to create an atmosphere for ground water field. Central Government has approved
Rs.756.76 crore for Proposed expenditure for activities to be undertaken under this
Programme.

GWRDC as Project implementing agency for works of Atal bhujal scheme and managing
Director has been appointed as Project Director of State Project Management Unit .1t is
planned to undertake the following activities by Geological wing for Atal bhujal Scheme.

Activities of purchasing 2001 Analogue water level Indicator to monitor ground water level
at village Panchayat level.

Activities relating to DWLR with Telemetry installation on 836 Piezometers to be drilled
under the Scheme.

For DLI # I, to Provide data for ground water level and ground water quality from
monitoring station of GWRDC and CGWB and Co-ordination with TPI verification.

Details of grant received and expenditure incurred for Atal bhujal Scheme are as under.

Statement Showing grant received and expenditure incurred during the year
2021-22 On Atal Bhujal Scheme.

(Rs.In Lakh)
Opening Balance Grant recelved Expenditure Balance as on
during the year i
Dt. 01/04/2021 Total amount |_ncurred/Advance Dt. 31/03/2022
2021-22 during the year 2021-22
1010.43 3650.52 4660.95 495.99 4164.96
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Prime MinisterAgriculture Irrigation Programe:

» Under this project, rain water of average 750 mm or more is available and where dynamic

ground water usage is less than 60% and ground water is less than 15 meters, in such
talukas, utilizing ground water by constructing dug well/ dug cum bore well/ tube well and
to provide irrigation benefits to small and marginal farmers.For implementation of this
Scheme, at Present Scheme is undertaken for Dang district at the total estimated cost of
Rs.136.24 crore , of which Portion of Central Govt. is 60% and 40% of Gujarat state.Under
this Scheme, it is Planned to Cover 3668 hector area for irrigation by constructing 2512
open wells. Total 3655 farmers will be benefited by this scheme.ISR ( Institute of
Seismological Research ) has been awarded work order of Rs.2.39 Crore to Carry out
geological survey by which, geological Survey on 3366 sites are being Carried out.

Deposit works:

1.

During the year 2021-22, Geological wing, under deposit works, has received total 5054
applications for geohydrological survey under M.G.N.R.E.G. (MGNAREGA) scheme. For
this survey, income of Rs.20217100/- is earned by the Corporation.

0.02 Gotha: Concerned office has been given the report after undertaking geological survey
on 176 sites under deposit work. For such survey, mamlatdar office gives application wise
fees of Rs.1000/- to the corporation. Corporation has earned income of Rs.176000/- during
the year 2021-22.

During the year 2021-22,to find out the Possibilities of tubewells on 30 sites, deposit work
of ground water investigation for Private applicants have been carried out.During the year
2021-22, Corporation has earned an income of Rs.3,00,000/- through these works.

During 2021-22 ,Data of ground water level and quality have been given to 28 private and
research scholler applicants. During the year 2021-22, Corporation has earned an income of
Rs.10,61,000/-through these activities.

The above activities under deposit work are the activities of the corporation over and above
the main activities. The above mentioned all deposit work activities having increase/decrease
to some extent.
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Annexure-B

Details of changes in Key Managerial Personnel & Board of Directors from 01/04/2021 to till
date of report:

lfl;. Name & DIN of Director Designation AppD(?it:t?rTen : Czjstaet?;n
1. Shri K. A. Patel Chairman 09.08.2016 12.10.2021
2. Shri K. B. Rabadia Chairman 22.12.2021 Continue
3. Dr. Mahesh singh, IFS Director 24.06.2019 23.08.2021
4. Shri K. S. Randhawa, IFS Director 23.08.2021 02.03.2022
5. Shri Prabhav Joshi, 1AS Director 28.04.2022 29.08.2023
6. Shri Arun Mahesh Babu, 1AS Director 29.08.2023 Continue
7. Shri D. A. Thakkar Director 06.03.2020 25.01.2022

Shri H. U. Kalyani Director 25.01.2022 Continue
9. Shri B. M. Modi Director 10.05.2017 31.12.2021
10. | Shri S. J. Solanki Director 31.12.2021 Continue
11. Shri J. S. Joshi Director 21.09.2020 05.01.2022
12. Shri R. K. Joshi Director 05.01.2022 15.02.2023
13. | Shri Komal Bhatt Director 15.02.2023 Continue
14. Dr. Dhimant Vyas Director 06.03.2020 14.07.2021
15. Shri M. R. Patel Director 14.07.2021 30.05.2022
16. Shri J. K. Trivedi Director 30.05.2022 Continue
17. Shri V. S. Patel Managing Director 26.06.2020 31.03.2022
18. Shri R. M. Patel Managing Director 01.04.2022 Continue
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Annexure-C

GUJARAT WATER RESOURCES DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LID., GANDHINAGAR

F.Y.2021-22

REPLY TO REMARKS OBSERVED BY STATUTORY AUDITORS ON ACCOUNTS FOR

THE PAST YEAR.

Sr. No of
Independent
Auditors
Reports

Remarks Observed by the Statutory Auditors

Reply of the Management

(XI)

As per the policy adopted by the company,
inventory is to be valued at cost or net realizable
value whichever is lower. However the company has
stated the inventory at cost, instead of cost or net
realizable value whichever is lower. To that extent
the company has not complied with accounting
standard 2, Valuation of inventories. In absence of
data for net realizable value of the inventory, the
impact on inventory value and on profit could not be
ascertained Most of the inventory items are very old
and slow moving, and hence it is necessary for the
company to get it valued afresh from competent
person so as to reflect the inventory value in books
of accounts as per policy adopted by the company.

Process for valuation of
some of the inventory lying
at stores of corporation is
initiated.  Upset/Estimated
values for vehicles, Trucks
and dewatering units are
determined and valuation for
rest of the stock items will
be initiated. = Necessary
action will be taken based on
valuation.

Note:- Details of other qualifications given in the auditor’s report in Basis for qualified opinion(i),
(i), (iii),(iv),(v), (vi),(vii), (viii), (ix), (X), (xi),(xii)are narrated in the notes No.29(a), 29(b), 29
(d), 29(e), 1d(1) (1), Note no. 6, 37(a), 37(b), 37(c),Note no. 25, Note N0.12 and Note no. 28
in Significant Accounting Policies of notes forming part of Accounts. Audit committee has
constituted a subcommittee in the meeting held on 28.04.2022 to resolve the above issues. The
main objective of forming the sub-committee is to resolve the audit remarks carried forward in
the audit report since many years. The sub-committee has been working since the formation,
collecting the necessary data and information, and compilation of the data, in order the resolve
the matters related to audit para.
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NO. Tech. S. Cell/S-2/Accounts/lGWRDCL/comments/2021-22/OW/35,

Office of the Principal Accountant General (Accounts Audit-1)/Gujarat, Annexi Bhavan,
Race Cource Road, Post Bag No.27, Rajkot-360 001.

Tele.- +91-281-2446836-37, Fax- +91-281-2476921
Email: pagaulgujarat@cag.gov.in

Date: 13-09-2023.

TO,

Managing Director,

Gujarat Water Resources Development Corporation Ltd,
Sector -10-A, Near Seeds Corporation,

Gandhinagar-382010

Sub: ‘Non-Review Certificate’ by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under
Section 143(6)(b) of the companies Act, 2013 on the Accounts of Gujarat Water
Resources Development Corporation limited for the Year ended 315tmarch, 2022.

Sir,
Based on the report prepared by the Statutory Auditors and audit Carried out for the

Financial statements of Gujarat water Resources Development Corporation for the year ended 31%
March 2022, order to issue ‘Non-Review Certificate’ has been made.

I am enclosing here with Non-Review Certificate issued by the Comptroller and Auditor
General of India under section 143(6)(B) of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to the financial
statement of Gujarat water Resources Development Corporation Ltd. for the year ended 31 March,
2022,

Encl: As above
Yours Faithfully,
Sd/-
Dy. Accountant General,
(Accounts Audit Mgt. Group-1)
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER
SECTION 143 (6) (b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF GUJARAT WATER RESOURCES DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
LIMITED, GANDHINAGAR FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022.

The preparation of financial statement of the Gujarat Water Resources Development Corporation
LTD., Gandhinagar for the year ended 31 March 2022 in accordance with the financial reporting
framework prescribe under the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the Management
of the Company. The Statutory Auditors appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India
under Section 139 (5) of the Act are responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statements
under Section 143 of the Act based on independent audit in accordance with the standards on
auditing prescribed under Section 143 (10) of Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide
their Audit Report dated 31 May, 2022.

I, on the behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have decided not to conduct
supplementary audit of the financial statements of the Gujarat Water Resources Development
Corporation Ltd. Gandhinagar for the year ended 31 March 2022 under Section 143 (6) (a) of the
Act.

For and on behalf of the

Comptroller & Auditor General of India

Sd/-
(D. R. Patil)
Place: Rajkot Principal Accountant General (Audit-1)
Date: 13-09-2023. Gujarat, Rajkot
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To,
The Members of,

Gujarat Water Resources Development Corporation Limited
Report on the Financial Statements

1. Quialified Opinion;

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Gujarat Water Resources Development
Corporation Limited ("the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2022,
the Statement of Profit and Loss and the statement of Cash Flow for the year then ended and notes
to the financial statements including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information. (herewith after referred to as "financial statements")

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
except for the effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the 'Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022,
its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

2. Basis for Qualified Opinion:

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
made there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAI Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidences we have obtained
are sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion for the following
matters on the financial statements.

l. Note no. 29(a), of the financial statement, with regard to identification of unserviceable tube
Wells and Lift Irrigation Schemes and charge of depreciation thereon. The Company has
identified certain unserviceable tube wells and Lift Irrigation Schemes and charged
depreciation in accordance with significant accounting policies followed by the Company in
Spite of the fact that such tube wells and Lift Irrigation Schemes are no longer serviceable.
The value thereof should have been adjusted in Fixed Assets and charged to the Statement of
Profit and Loss or in Capital Grant Accounted as Deferred Incomes as the case may be.

HO: B B Houseg, 5 collegewadi, Near Kathiyawad Gymkhana, Off Dr. Radhakrishnan Road, Rajkot-1

Branches: Mumbai, Ahmedabad
Email: samirbhuptani@hotmail.com; Contact; 0281-248166
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However, the Company has not adjusted the value of such unserviceable assets in the financial
statements, amount being uncertain and to that extent the Company has not complied with
Accounting Standard - 28 "Impairment of Assets” which has resulted in over statement of Fixed
Assets, depreciation, Capital Grant Accounted as Deferred Income and profit for the year under
review.

1. Note No. 29(b) of the financial statement, regarding non-execution of conveyance deed in
respect of land acquired by the Company from farmers for construction of tube wells.
Although the Company has acquired land from farmers for construction of tube wells and
Lift Irrigation Schemes, it has not executed conveyance deed in some of the cases, details
thereof are not available.

1. Note No. 29(d), In respect of some of the tube wells /Lift Irrigation Scheme constructed out
of grant before 01.04.2014, the corporation could not compile the information related to its
cost of construction and date of construction. As a matter of prudence the corporation started
to provide the depreciation on wells/lift irrigations with effect from the year 2010-11, and
has been deducted from the capital grants accounted as Deferred Income. In view of this, the
amount of Opening Written Down Value of the said assets and depreciation provided
thereon as well as the amount deducted from Capital Grant accounted as deferred income
could not be identified / quantified. In the absence thereof the effect, if any on the Financial.
Statements could not be ascertained.

IV. Note No0.29(e) of the financial statement, regarding non compilation of relevant information
with regard to impaired assets and subsequent effect thereof on current year profit or Capital
Grant Accounted as Deferred Income as the case may be. The Company has not conducted
the test of impairment of assets and compiled the relevant information. Consequently it- has
not adjusted the carrying value of the assets if required, amount being unascertained, and to
that extent the Company has not complied with Accounting Standard - 28 "Impairment of
Assets" as a consequences of which impact on Carrying Amount of Fixed Assets, Capital
Grant Accounted as Deferred Income, depreciation and profit for the year under review
could not be ascertained.

V. In terms of paragraph d (1)(ii) of Note no. 1 of the financial statement; the Company has
charged depreciation on cost of tube wells which is inclusive of land, to that extent the
company has not complied with Accounting Standard - 6 "Depreciation Accounting” as a
consequence of which effect on the Statement of Profit and Loss and Capital Grant
Accounted as Deferred Income as the case may be could not be ascertained.

VL. In terms of Note No.6 of the financial statements for Short Term Borrowings, the Term loan
of Rs. 3,19,642 Thousand payable to Government. of Gujarat. are overdue as it became
payable on the expiry of tenure of the respective loan. In the absence of relevant papers,
balance confirmation and documents, the periodicity of loan, rate of interest, correctness
of the balance of term loan and security offered etc. couldnot be ascertained, mentioned
and effect thereof, if any on the financial statements of the company could not be
ascertained.

HO: B B Houseg, 5 collegewadi, Near Kathiyawad Gymkhana, Off Dr. Radhakrishnan Road, Rajkot-1

Branches: Mumbai, Ahmedabad
Email: samirbhuptani@hotmail.com; Contact: 0281-248166
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VII.

VIII.

XI.

XIlI.

Since the Company does not have the requisite information with regard to some of the
balances of Trade Receivables and Other Receivables, it has not provided for bad and
doubtful debts as referred to in Note No. 37(a) of the financial statement. Since, the amount
is not identified, the effect thereof on financial statements could not be ascertained.

The Company has not compiled and reconciled the balances- in general ledger with the'
balances in supplementary ledgers/ registers as described in Note No.37(b) and impact if any
of unreconciled amounts on the Financial Statements could not be ascertained.

Note No. 37(c) of the financial statement regarding the balance of Government of Gujarat
Loan, trade payables, unspent and overspent grant, unpaid expenses; deposit works,
advances given/received, trade receivables, other receivables,, deposits receivable/payables,
loans and advances, amount payable to / receivable from government department / agencies
and Other payable and receivable are subject to confirmation and reconciliation.

The Company has provided for 'Maintenance and Repairs to tubewells / L1 schemes' during
the year under review as per Note No. 25 of the financial Statements which includes amount
payable/paid to NGO's/ Mandalis for operation and maintenance of completed Lift Irrigation
Scheme. Out of this expenditure, there are unascertainable expenditure for which requisite
information such as period to which expenditure pertains, details of accrued expenditure/ the
prior period expenditure included in above and the short provision, if any, of the same could
not be identified. This constitutes a departure from Accounting Standard - 5 "Net profit or
Loss for the period, prior period items and changes in accounting policies™ and Accounting
Standard- 29 "Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” respectively as a
consequences of which impact on Financial Statements for the year could not be ascertained.

Note No. 12 of the financial statements regarding Capital Work-in-Progress, inter alia,
includes balances pending capitalization for long period of time owing to pending analysis
of status and value. The consequential impact on the Capital Work-in-Progress, Fixed
Assets, Depreciation and Capital Grant Accounted as Deferred Income if any is not
ascertainable.

Note No. 28 of the financial statements stares that Government of Gujarat had entrusted to
the corporation the Works of Sujalam Sufalam pipe line project works in the Year 2003 and
onwards. The corporation had deployed staff to carry out The Said Works and accordingly,
pay and allowances paid to the staff employed for the Said project had been charged to the
Said Project for which approval of Board of Directors was obtained in February, 2005 and
also intimated to Govt. of Gujarat. However, CAG had objected that the pay & allowances
cannot be chargedto the Project works unless approved by Govt. of Gujarat. Finance
Department Govt. of Gujarat. After due deliberations, allowed the corporation to charge pay
& allowances incurred on Sujalam Sufalam Yojana upto the Year 2006-07 to the Project
works (Letter No. SSC-1/GWRDC/2013/1175/K-3/Dt. 25/3/15 of NWRWS and Kalpsari
Dept.). Hence, the expenditure incurred for salary and allowances debited to Sufalam
Sufalam project since 2007-08 to 2015-16 are now to be charged, to- profit & loss account.
But, since the details are under compilation, the amount is not identified and the effect
thereof on financial statements is unascertained.

HO: B B House, 5 collegewadi, Near Kathiyawad Gymkhana, Off Dr. Radhakrishnan Road, Rajkot-1
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XII.

As per the policy adopted by the company, inventory is to be valued at cost or net realizable
value which ever is lower. However the company has stated the inventory at cost, instead of
cost or net realizable value whichever is lower. To that extent the company has not complied
with accounting standard 2, Valuation of inventories. In absence of data for net realizable
value of the inventory, the impact on inventory value and on profit could not be ascertained
Most of the inventory items are very old and slow moving, and hence it is necessary for the
company to get it valued afresh from competent person so as to reflect the inventory value in
books of accounts as per policy adopted by the company.

The cumulative impact of the matters narrated and described at points (I) to (XII1) above on the
Financial Statements for the year under review is not ascertainable.

3.

Emphasis on matter

We draw attention to the fact the accumulated losses of the company have exceeded its net
worth. However financial statements are prepared on going concern basis as the
management anticipates profit from operation in future years and continuous financial
support from the State Government for continuance of the business which will result in
positive net worth.

The company has availed term of Rs. 319642 (‘000) from Government of Gujarat on various
dates. The said loan was required to repaid in 10 years, however the company has not repaid
the said loan even after expiry of tenure of loan. Further interest too has not been paid by the
company to the Government of Gujarat. The company is making provision of interest in
books of accounts every year. Till financial year 2022-23 the company has provided interest
provision of Rs 1307167 (‘000) in its books of accounts. The Company has not obtained
balance confirmation from the Government of Gujarat and hence correctness of interest
provision provided in books of accounts of the company could not be ascertained. Earlier in
financial year 1996-97 said loan was written off by the company, however in the year 2015-
16 on direction of CAG, the entire loan amount was written back. It is necessary for the
company to get the balance confirmation from the Government of Gujarat so as to have
correct position of loan balance and provision of interest in the books of accounts of the
company.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon:

The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to
Board’s Report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

HO: B B House, 5 collegewadi, Near Kathiyawad Gymkhana, Off Dr. Radhakrishnan Road, Rajkot-1
Branches: Mumbai, Ahmedabad
Email: samirbhuptani@hotmail.com; Contact: 0281-248166

21


mailto:samirbhuptani@hotmail.com

sadp& co.

Chartered Accountants

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013, we give in the ‘Annexure A’, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3
and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(5) of the Act; we have considered the direction and sub-
directions issued by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India. We -give our report in the
attached "Annexure B.

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: -

a)

b)

f)

9)

Except for the matter described in the basis for qualified opinion paragraph, we have
sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, Subject to the matter described in basis for qualified opinion and
Annexure A to the Auditor’s Report, proper books of account as required by law
have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those
books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of Cash Flow
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account.

Except for the matter described in the basis for qualified opinion paragraph in our
opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standard specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March
31, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate Report in “Annexure-C” of the report; Our report expresses qualified
opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the company’s internal
financial controls over financial reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, in terms of Noti. No. G.S.R. 463(E) dtd.05.06.15 issued by. The MCA,
this being the Government Company, provisions of section 197 of the Companies
Act ,2013 related to Managerial remuneration is not applicable.
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h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in ‘accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

Place:-Rajkot
Date: 31/07/2023

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its financial statements (Refer. Note No. 36) to the financial -
statements.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

(i)

(i)

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities,
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”) with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall:

o directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Company or

o provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The management has also represented, that, to the best of its
knowledge and belief, no funds have been received by the Company
from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (‘“Funding
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall:

o directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Funding Party or

o provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

and based on the audit procedures that have been considered
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to
our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under
sub-clause d(i) and d(ii), contain any material misstatement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year in
contravention of the provisions of the section 123 of companies Act, 2013

ForSADPANDCO
Chartered Accountants FRN: 0112625W

DIVYESH GUNVANTRAI BHUPTANI (PARTNER)

UDIN: 23113885BGUWMT7449 Membership No. 113885
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"ANNEXURE A" TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 3 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements'

(i) (a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(€)

(f)

(i))(a)

section of our report of even date)

As per our verification and information and explanation given to us, the Company has not
maintained proper records showing full particulars of property and plant and machinery.
Most of the fixed assets have not been physically verified by the management during the
year under the consideration.

The company has not maintained proper records showing full particulars of the intangible
asserts.

In most of the cases Company has not physically verified property and plant and equipment
at reasonable interval.

As per the, information and explanations given to us, during the course of audit, the
company has all title 'deeds of immovable properties in its name except for the land acquired
from farmers by the Company for construction of tube wells and lifts irrigation Schemes
which are yet to be executed in favor of the company in some cases, details thereof are not
available.

The Company does not follow the revaluation model for subsequent measurement of its
Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of use assets) or intangible assets.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company and hence not reported upon.

There are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made
there under. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(i)(e) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company and hence not reported upon.

Management has not physically verified the inventory. However physical verification was
carried out by the independent auditor. The verification was carried out once in a year and in
our opinion same was found appropriate considering the size of inventory and nature of
business in which company is engaged. No discrepancy was pointed out by the auditor
except the valuation of inventory. Auditor has specifically mentioned in his report that “the
stocks are older than 8 to 10 years and carried forward in stock register since 2013. As a
stock is very older its very difficult to ascertain market value so we have considered cost of
the inventory as market value”.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of ~ five crore in

aggregate from banks or financial institutions during the year on the basis of security of
current assets. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company and hence not reported upon.
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(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

During the year under the consideration company has not provided advances in the nature of
loans, stood guarantee or provided security to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships, or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the
Act, Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(iii)(a), (b), and (c) of the said Order are not
applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

The Company has not provided guarantees, given security or granted advances in nature of
loans during the year and hence not commented upon by us.

In absence of necessary details for items falling under the head of advance from customers,
we are unable to report whether same can be classified as deemed deposit or not;

Cost records has not been specified for the company and hence company is not required to
maintain the cost records.

vii)(a) Undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, income tax,

(b)

(viii)

sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other
statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities,
wherever applicable, though there has been a delay in a few cases. According to the
information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures performed by us, no
undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues were outstanding, at the year
end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable

The dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax,
sales tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess, and other
statutory dues that have not been deposited on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Name of the Statute | Nature of dues | Forum where the dispute is pending | Amount Rs.

Income Tax Act 1961 | TDS demand Assessing officer 38,55,700

Shown above is extracted from the Traces-TDS Centralized Processing Cell of the Income
Tax Department, In the absence of complete details, year wise break up and due dates of
payments/dates of payments, if any paid could not be given and in view of the same the
details with regard to outstanding for a period of more than six months from the date they
become payable could not be given. However, company is of the view that no such amounts
are payable and is being looked into and being reconciled hence no liabilities in respect
thereof have been provided but the same is shown as Contingent Liabilities.

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously not recorded in
the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income
during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company and hence not reported upon.

(ix)(a) Company has availed credit facility from Government of Gujarat and same has not been

repaid. The details of the same is as under

Nature of borrowing Amount not Whether No. of days
. . . . Remarks,
including debt Name of lender | paid on due principal or delay or £ an
securities date interest unpaid y
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To meet capital
. vernment of - More than
expenditure and Gove . ento Rs. 3196.42 Principal ore tha
. . Gujarat 10 years
working capital
To meet capital
. Government of More than
expenditure and . 13071.67 Interest
. i Gujarat 10 years
working capital

*(a)

(b)

(©
(d)
(€)

(f)

(x)(@)

(b)

(xi)(a)

(b)

(©)

xii)

The above loan amount is outstanding since long period of time. The company has made
provision of Interest on the basis of terms prescribed in agreement. No confirmation of
outstanding loan and interest payable has been obtained from Government of Gujarat.

The Company has not been declared as willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution
or government or any government authority

No term loan has been availed by the company during the year under the consideration.
No short term loan has been availed by the company during the year under the consideration

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not
taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company and hence not reported upon.

The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. Hence, the requirement to report on
clause (ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company and hence not reported upon.

The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer/
further public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause
3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company and hence not reported upon.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /fully
or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the
requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company and
hence not reported upon.

No fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported
during the year under audit.

During the year, no report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
has been filed by cost auditor/secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT-4, as prescribed
under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, with the Central
Government.

As informed by the management, no whistle blower complaints have been received by the
company during the year under the consideration.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(a) to (c) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company and hence not reported upon.
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(xiii)

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of
Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to
the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

xiv)(a) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its

(b)

XV)

business.

The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the
period under audit have been considered by us.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence the requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company and hence not reported upon.

xvi)(a) The provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not

(b)

applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company and hence not reported upon.

The Company has not conducted any Non Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities
without obtaining a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India
as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by

(d)

XVii)

XViii)

(xix)

Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(c) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company and hence not reported upon

Based on information and explanation provided by the management of the Company, there is
no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group, hence, the requirement to report on
clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company and hence not reported upon.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current year and in the immediately
preceding financial year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvii) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company and hence not reported upon.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company and
hence not reported upon.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios disclosed in note 54(14) to the standalone financial statements, ageing and expected
dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting
its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period
of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to
the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts
up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.
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(xx)(a) Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013 is not applicable to the company and hence not
reported upon.

(b) Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013 is not applicable to the company and hence not
reported upon.

ForSADPANDCO
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 0112625W

Place:-Rajkot DIVYESH GUNVANTRAI BHUPTANI
Date: 31/07/2023 (PARTNER)
UDIN: 23113885BGUWMT 7449 Membership No. 113885
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sadp& co.

Chartered Accountants

"ANNEXURE “B" TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirement’)

Gujarat Water Resources Development Corporation Limited

Report under section 143(5) of the Companies Act,

2013 for the Financial Year 2021-22:

BUSINESS RISK

Reply

The company does not have proper system of
reviewing and computation of booking of capital
work in process. Due to which the figure of
work in process may show inaccurate position of
capital work in process. Lack of proper system
may result into inaccurate result of fixed assets,
depreciation and profit/loss.

Necessary records are maintained, also
as suggested assets register will updated
to maintain proper record for recording
and computation of capital works.

SYSTEM OF ACCOUNTS AND FINANCIAL

CONTROL

We have observed that the company is still
following manual system of accounting.
Company has awarded contract for maintaining
books of accounts in computerized form for
financial year 2020-21 and 2021-22,however
company failed to produce the computerized
books of accounts before us stating that same are
not ready yet. On the contrary company had
extended the period of contract for computerized
accounting to same consultant for financial year
2022-23 also.

For year 2022-23 agency has been
nominated for computerized accounting.

Tally entries for FY 2021-22 have been
completed except reconciliation of Trial
balance of Gandhinagar Division
Sujlamsuflam with cashbook entries. It
will be reconciled once the audit of fy
21-22 is finalised. Contract was renewed
as per condition in tender for extension

Since last many years’ statutory auditors are
giving qualified report to the company. The
qualifications are serious in nature and same
needs to be rectified on urgent basis.

Special committee to deal with the
qualification and outstanding audit
remark of statutory auditor has been
framed, meeting of committee was held
on 28-04-2023. Point of statutory audit
will be taken up on priority basis.

Company does not have proper policy for write
off of long outstanding entries were recovery
chances are very remote, as a result of which
many long outstanding entries were found in the
balance sheet. We observed long outstanding
entries under the head of Advance to suppliers,
contractors and NGOs Rs 17849 (‘000) and Rs.
4673 (‘000) under the head of advance to staff.

As said data is old and process of
collecting necessary information
regarding long outstanding entries found
in the balance sheet under the head of
advance to suppliers, contractors, NGOS
and advance to staff will be taken up.
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The company does not have any system of
obtaining the confirmation of balances from
debtors/creditors and other parties. The company
has availed term of Rs. 319642 (‘000) from
Government of Gujarat on various dates. The
said loan was required to repaid in 10 years,
however the company has not repaid the said
loan even after expiry of tenure of loan. Further
interest too has not been paid by the company to
the Government of Gujarat. The company is
making provision of interest in books of
accounts every year. Till financial year 2022-23
the company has provided interest provision of
Rs 1307167 (‘000) in its books of accounts. The
Company has not obtained balance confirmation
from the Government of Gujarat and hence
correctness of interest provision provided in
books of accounts of the company could not be
ascertained. Earlier in financial year 1996-97
said loan was written off by the company,
however in the year 2015-16 on direction of
CAG, the entire loan amount was written back.
It is necessary for the company to get the
balance confirmation from the Government of
Gujarat so as to have correct position of loan
balance and provision of interest in the books of
accounts of the company.

The proposal for waiver of loans
andinterest received from Government of
Gujaratwill require compilation of
various GR since the year 1977 to 2004.
The balance confirmation will be taken
from Govt. of Gujarat. Hence the same
will take significant amount of time.

We observed long outstanding entries under the
head of Advance to suppliers, contractors and
NGOs Rs 17849 (‘000) and Rs. 4673 (‘000)
under the head of advance to staff. The company
has filed suit against few parties however there
are many parties where the company has not
lodged any claim.

Necessary action will be taken and
intimated to audit office.

Risk

The company had awarded operation and
maintenance  contract of KHORSAM -
SARASWATI PIPELING PROJECT to M/s
Utility Engineering & consultant. Third party
inspection agency made the observation that out
of six pumps, three pumps were not working.
This observation (in addition to other
irregularities) was pointed out by the TPI in
every month. However the company did not

The Operation and Maintenance work of
KHORSAM-SARASWATI Pipeline
Project was awarded to M/s Utility
Engineering & consultant for the period
under consideration.

Contract condition mentioned on page
no.-105 (Copy enclosed) states that

“ In khorsam pumping station 3-pump
set out of 6-nos pump set, In hansapur
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make any deduction from the contractual
payment made every month. Total payment for
the contract as per the tender approved is Rs
103.46 Lac/annuam.

pumping station 2-nos pump set out of
3-nos pump set which are under repair
and also in scope of repairing of old

agency. This repair works are not
included in this tender. Further in this
case if department supply or provide the
motor pump set and related other spare
parts than installation, fitting, labour
charges, commissioning etc shall be
borne by agency.”

As per aforementioned tender condition,
No deduction has to be made for three
non-working pumps. Pertinently, One
Pump set was repaired in the month of
Sept, 2021 and the process for the
remaining pump sets as taken up
recently. Looking at above narrated facts
it is requested to drop said para.

The company awarded contract to M/s Utility

Engineering Consultants for O & M of
Khosram-Hansapur ~ projects.  Third  party
inspection agency made the repeatedly

observation that pumps no 1 and 2 were in
dismantle condition. However the company did
not make any deduction from the contractual
payment made to the contractor every month.
Similar kind of irregularities were pointed out in
following contractor also

1. V B CHAUDHRI- Modhera project
2. V B CHAUDHRI Rasulpur project
3. V B CHAUDHRI Modidau project

» Please refer compliance of para no. 7
with reference to Operation &
Maintenance of Khorsam Hansapur
Project (Khorsam Saraswati Project).

» Moreover, the Operation and
Maintenance work of Modhera-
Dharoi Pipeline (Modhera-Motidau-
Rasulpur) was awarded to M/s V B
Chaudhri  for the period under
consideration.

> In the said period, all pumpsets were
in working condition. The running
status of each pump of Modhera,
Rasulpur & Motidau Stations is
attached herewith for your ready
reference.

» Hence, there is no point of
irregularities in payment made for
any projects mentioned above and it
IS requested to drop said para.

The company had awarded operation and
maintenance contract of NARMADA MAIN
PROJECT to M/s G S DODIYA. In Third party
inspection, zero reading was noticed. This matter

The Operation and Maintenance work of
Jalundara-Madhavgadh  pipeline  was
awarded to M/s G.S.Dodiya for the
period under consideration. Narmada
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IS subject to investigation as the prima facie it
seems that the pumps under the contract were
not used during the period under the
consideration and huge payment was made to
the contractor.

based pipeline projects including
Jalundra Madhavgadh pipe line have
been designed for 100 days based on
availability of water and water demand
for irrigation by farmers.

In the said period, all pumpsets were in
working condition

Certified copy of Executive Engineer
showing operation hours is enclosed
herewith.

Hence, Payment was made as per
contract agreement and it is requested to
drop said para.

Assets (including inventory)

10

During the course of our visit at various
divisions we did not find updated fixed asset
register. Due to said fact many assets mentioned
in fixed asset register were physically not found.
The major discrepancy was noticed at the Vasna
Division of the company. The company is
required to issue necessary instruction at all the
divisions to update the fixed asset register and
same must be tallied with asset in physical, so as
to have actual position of the fixed asset and
chances of fraud can be avoided.

Due to limited staff updation of assets
register was delayed but necessary action
will be taken up on priority basis.

11

The company has got inventory of Rs22238
(‘000). As per the policy adopted by the
company, inventory is to be valued at cost or net
realizable value whichever is lower. However
the company has stated the inventory at cost,
instead of cost or net realizable value whichever
is lower. To that extent the company has not
complied with accounting standard 2, Valuation
of inventories. In absence of data for net
realizable value of the inventory, the impact on
inventory value and on profit could not be
ascertained Most of the inventory items are very
old and slow moving, and hence it is necessary
for the company to get it valued afresh from
competent person so as to reflect the inventory
value in books of accounts as per policy adopted
by the company.

Process for valuation of some of the
inventory lying at stores of corporation
will be initiated and necessary action will
be taken.
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12

The company has not carried out the test of
impairment of assets and hence to that extent the
value of such assets have been overstated. On
our random verification we observed that many
assets were not in use over considerable period
of time. Due to said fact depreciation on such
asset is overstated. In absence of necessary
records it is not possible for us to determine the
value of the same.

Due to limited staff updation of assets
register was delayed but necessary action
will be taken up on priority basis.

13

The company is not adhered to policy of
physical verification of fixed asset. Due to said
fact we observed that many assets mentioned in
fixed asset register were not found in physical.

Any assets created by company is always
verified in physical and accordingly
measurements of assets are recorded in
measurement books and payment are
made but as said to very limited staff the
updation of assets register is delayed
which will be updated shortly and
intimated to audit office.

LIABILITIES AND LOANS

14

The company has availed term of Rs. 319642
(‘000) from Government of Gujarat on various
dates. The said loan was required to repaid in 10
years, however the company has not repaid the
said loan even after expiry of tenure of loan.
Further interest too has not been paid by the
company to the Government of Gujarat. The
company is making provision of interest in
books of accounts every year. Till financial year
2022-23 the company has provided interest
provision of Rs 1307167 (‘000) in its books of
accounts. The Company has not obtained
balance confirmation from the Government of
Gujarat and hence correctness of interest
provision provided in books of accounts of the
company could not be ascertained. Earlier in
financial year 1996-97 said loan was written off
by the company, however in the year 2015-16 on
direction of CAG, the entire loan amount was
written back. It is necessary for the company to
get the Dbalance confirmation from the
Government of Gujarat so as to have correct
position of loan balance and provision of interest
in the books of accounts of the company.

The proposal for waiver of loans interest
received from Government of Gujarat
will require compilation of various GR
since the year 1977 to 2004. Hence the
process for confirmation of balance,
waiver of loan and interest will take
significant amount of time.
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AWARD AND EXECUTION OF CONTRACTS

15

The company had awarded work of operation
and maintenance to M/s Maruti Trading Pvt.
Ltd. for the company’s Khosram and Hansapur
pumping station. The company extended the
work contract for two years till 30.09.2015.
After further extension the contract was
completed on 10.12.2015 and new contract was
awarded to M/s Utility Engineering and
Consultant, Gandhinagar. The entire contract
was of Rs 36.83 Lac. At the time of taking
charge it was noticed that M/s Maruti Trading P.
Ltd did not perform its duty properly and huge
portion of repairing was pending as stated by the
company. Later company estimated the
expenditure for repairing. The total estimate
came to Rs 2.43 crore. We are of opinion that
the amount to be recovered from the contractor
is very huge and more than 6 times of yearly
tender amount. This prima facie suggests that the
contractor has not performed its duty properly.
The company has a system of third party
inspection and payment is made only after third
party inspection only. In view of this it

The operation and maintenance work
was awarded to M/s Maruti Trading Pvt
Ltd for Khosram and Hansapur pumping
station on dated 4/10/2012 for one year
amounting Rs. 36.83 lacs. which was
extended for two years i.e. upto
10/12/2015. Amounting Rs. 110.49 lacs.

During the last extended year, the
maintenance work of agency was not as
per norms and significant wear and tear
was observed in the pump-sets. Hence,
Department/Company had given number
of reminders for repairing of pump sets
but agency had not taken any care for
proper repairing, therefore as per
contract conditions, payment for the
period from 4/2015 to 12/2015 along
with  deposits i.eRs.28.68lacs were
recovered, For remaining amount to be
recovered a circular was circulated to all
offices (copy enclosed).

seems that either third party inspection was not
properly done or if same was done properly
necessary penalty was not imposed by the
company. The company must investigate the
matter and accountability must be fixed.

Maruti trading Pvt. Ltd has filed SCA
N0.8003 of 2022 in hon. High court of
Guijarat. In oral order dated 25/04/2022
“interim stay subject to petitioner deposit
in 20% of the amount demanded” was
issued (Copy enclosed).

16

The company had awarded contract of third
party inspection to SGS India Pvt. Ltd and
agency was supposed to submit the certificate
for charge taken by operation and maintenance
contractor agency. However no such certificate
found on record for operation and maintenance
contract given to contractors namely G S
DODIYA AND V B CHAUDHRI

The work of third party inspection was
awarded to M/S SGS India Pvt Ltd in the
year 2020-21. The copy of Handing &
Taking over of charge for O & M agency
afterwards is attached herewith.

17

A tender was awarded to M/S DB
ENTERPRISE for providing manpower for the
period 01.07.2019 to 30.06.2020 with extension
clause upto one year however same was
extended beyond one year. This is clear violation
of terms and conditions mentioned in tender
documents.

The extension to the tender was given by
competent authority till a new tender was
not finalized. Necessary documents of
extension of time limit were shown to
audit party by said offices and H.O.
hence it is requested to drop the said
para.
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18

Generally company use to publish the data of
schedule of rate. On the basis of said data
company use to make recovery from the
contractor for hard rock removed at the time of
excavation. We observed that since last more
than 3 years company has not published said
data and hence recovery is made on the basis of
past data only which ultimately result into loss
of revenue to the company.

Schedule of Rate was approved in the
year2018-19.After that due to Covid-19
pandemic situation the process of
updating the same was hampered.
However, Company's current S.O.R. for
the year 2023-24 is on the verge of
approval.

19

A tender was awarded to M/S. GURUKRUPA
TUBEWELL CO. for pumping station at various
locations vide letter dated 16-06-2020 which
was required to be competed by 17/10/2020.
However original work was completed on
27.01.2021 resulting into delay by 102 days. As
per tender terms and conditions liquidated dames
@0.1% per day will applicable in case of delay.
Thus there should be penalty of Rs 686029
should be recovered from the contractor. But no
such deduction was made from the bill of
contractor.The request for extension was
received from the contractor after completion of
the contract and hence same is not permissible as
per the terms and conditions of the contract.

Time Limit Granted to the contractor as
per tender condition & on the basis of
actual reasons permitted for extension.

The actual date of drilling start is given,
however after giving work order
immediately agency has started their
work that is survey & mobilization of
machinery.

Internal Audit system

20

Company has system of internal audit and for
that the company use to appoint chartered
accountancy firm. We observed that internal
audit is carried out after the completion of the
financial year and after closure of books of
accounts as a result of which the very purpose of
the internal audit is defeated. We also observed
that company is not paying proper attention
towards the importance of internal audit and
hence desired result is not derived. Company
must stipulate in internal audit tender for 100%
verification of vouchers, cash verification,

inventory  verification, cash book, bank
statement, rate verification visa vis tender
documents, fixed asset wverification, muster

verification etc. Such kind of condition will
make it possible to have fruitful result from the
internal audit.

As suggested necessary action will be
taken up.
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Serious irregularities

21

Company has failed to conclude the annual
general meeting on stipulated time and hence its
violation of section 96 of the Companies Act
2013. As per said section company is supposed
to hold the meeting within stipulated time
however company has failed to do so. Further in
case if meeting could not be held company is
supposed to seek time extension from RoC
however has not done so. Thus in that way
company has violated the provision of Section
99 of the Act and hence liable to pay penalty of
Rs 1 Lac and since itscontinues default penalty
of Rs 5000/day is attracted. We have relied on
the judgment of Hon’bleKolkatta High Court in
the case of Bejoy Kumar Karnani And Anr. vs
Assistant Registrar Of Companies. In such
circumstances company and every responsible
officer shall be liable for punishment

As per provision of section of 96 of the
Companies Act, 2013, every Company is
required to hold Annual General Meeting
within 6 (six) months from the end of
Financial Year.

Accordingly, AGM for the F.Y. 2021-22
was called &held on 03/09/2022. AGM
was adjourned sine die till receipt of final
comments of C&AG on the Financial
Statements for the F.Y. 2021-22.

As per 3 proviso of Section 96 of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Registrar of
Companies is empowered to grant
extension of time for holding AGM not
exceeding 3 (three) Months. Therefore,
AGM is required to be convened on or
before 30" December of the particular
year including extension granted by RoC.

It may be noted that there were arrears in
finalization of account and Accounts for
the F.Y. 2020-21 were adopted by the
Shareholders at 46" Adjourned AGM
held on 03/09/2022. Therefore, seeking
extension of time for AGM for
maximum 3 months was not suitable
option considering the status of
finalization of accounts for the F.Y.
2021-22.

Further, as per Secretarial Standard 2,
clause 15, Company may adjourn a
Meeting in the event of disorder or other
like causes, when it becomes impossible
to conduct the Meeting and complete its
business. Therefore, considering the
status of finalization of accounts, the
shareholders present at the meeting
decided to adjourn the meeting sine die
till receipt of report of C&AG, as it was
not possible to complete the business i.e.
adoption of audited financial statements
along with report of C&AG for the F.Y.
2021-22.
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22

The present company status is active non-
compliant in MCA portal (www.mca.gov.in) as
a result of which filing of forms with MCA is
not becoming possible. We are of opinion that
it’s a very serious issue and same must be taken
on priority basis. Director will be personally
responsible for status of active non-compliant of
the company. Due to status of active non-
compliant company will be liable to pay heavy
penalty to the ministry of corporate affairs

i)

iD)

Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide
Notification No. GSR 144 (E), dated
21/02/2019 provided that Every
company incorporated on or before
the 31 December, 2017 shall file
the particulars of the company and
its registered office, in e-Form
ACTIVE (Active Company Tagging
Identities and Verification) on or
before 25.04.2019.

The Company who failed to file the
said e-form ACTIVE i.e. failed to
avail Active Compliance Status,
RoC will not accept the request to
record certain events including
appointment of Directors.

In order to file this ACTIVE form,
Company must have filed Financial
Statements & Annual Returns up to
FY 2017-18 and KYC of all
Directors must have been done.
Further, Key Managerial Personnel’s
i.e. Managing Director, Company
Secretary and Chief Financial
Officer must have been appointed
and return of their appointment must
have been filed with ROC.

At the time of introduction of this
provisions in the year 2019, there
was arrears in finalization of
Accounts for the F.Y. 2016-17 &
2017-18. Therefore, the said Active
form could not be filed by the
Company at the particular time.

The said matter regarding requirement
of filing of Active Compliant form
and resultantly non filing of return of
Directors was also placed before the
Board of Directors at 231% Meeting
held on 18" June, 2020.
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vi) Thereafter, the Accounts for the F.Y.
2017-18 were finalized and C&AG
comments were received on
13/12/2021 and thereafter Accounts
were adopted at AGM held on
22/12/2021. The Financial
Statements for the F.Y. 2017-18 duly
adopted at AGM were filed with
ROC on 27/01/2022 in XBRL mode.

vii) In the meantime, Resignation of CS
cum CFO was approved by the
Board of Directors w.e.f. 14.01.2020
at 234" Meeting held on 16.03.2021.

viii) Thus, due to non-appointment of
required Key Managerial Personnel
i.e. Company Secretary and Chief
Financial Officer, Company is
unable to file e-form ACTIVE with
Registrar of Company and hence
unable to maintain the status of
Active Compliance at MCA Portal.
The said matter was also brought in
to the notice of the Board of
Directors as a part of Action Taken
Report from time to time.

ix) It may be noted that GWRDC is an
undertaking of Government of
Guijarat. Therefore, in order to fill up
the post of Company Secretary,
approval of the State Government is
required. Therefore, Company has
already submitted proposal to the
State Government to fill up the said
post at the earliest.

X) New  Recruitment  Rules  for
appointment of Company Secretary
are also prepared and submitted to
the State Government for approval.

xi) The Management is regularly
following up with the State
Government to grant approval to fill
up the post of Company Secretary in
the Company at the earliest. Upon
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receipt of approval from the
Government, GWRDC will appoint
full time Company Secretary in
compliance with provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and required
formalities to  avail  Active
Compliance  Status by  filing
ACTIVE e-form with MCA will be
completed.

Place:-Rajkot
Date: 31/07/2023
UDIN: 23113885BGUWMT7449
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ForSADPANDCO
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 0112625W

DIVYESH GUNVANTRAI BHUPTANI
(PARTNER)
Membership No. 113885




sadp& co.
Chartered Accountants

"ANNEXURE “C" TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in clause (f) paragraph 3 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (1) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (*"the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Gujarat Water
Resources Development Corporation Limited, as of 31 March 2022 in conjunction with. Oar
audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended-on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under
Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the
Company.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, unreasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the standalone financial statements.

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Basis of Qualified Opinion,

In our opinion and to the best of our Information and according to the explanation given to us, the
following material weakness have been identified as on 31st March, 2022.

1. The Company did not have appropriate internal financial control over method and procedure
of acquisition of Land from farmers for Construction of Tube Well and Lift irrigation
Schemes, Identification of unserviceable tube wells and Lift irrigation schemes, charging of
depreciation and writing of carrying amount, non adjustment of sale proceeds of assets etc.
(Note No.29 of the financial Statement)

2. The Company has not compiled and reconciled balances in- general ledger With that of
subsidiary ledgers/registers ( Refer Note No. 34(b) of Financial Statement)

3. The expenditure incurred for salary and allowances debited to Sujalam Sufalam project
since 2007-08 to 2015-16 are now to be charged to profit & loss account, since the details
are under compilation, the amount is not identified and the effect thereof on financial
statements is unascertained. Refer Note No. 28 of Financial Statement

4. Note No. 32 of the financial statements regarding provision- of deferred-tax, the Company
has not recognized deferred tax assets on -unabsorbed depredation, unabsorbed losses
arising on account of timing differences due to accelerated depreciation in the financial
statements in view of absence of virtual certainty regarding future taxable income. In
absence of the details thereof the amount and effect thereof on the financial statement is
unascertained.

5. The Accounting entry at the unit level are done in manual manner, each unit get the account
prepared in computerised format and the same is submitted to Head office, there is no
integration of Accounts in different hierarchy.

6. No Physical Verification of fixed asset has been conducted during the year.
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7. During the course of audit, we observed that the system of recording of entries is not proper.
We observed several instances where the entries which should have been posted in another
accounting head

8. The Books of accounts of the company has not been prepared on timely basis resulting in
delayed preparation of final accounts.

9. The Company did not have an appropriate internal control system for reviewing
computation and booking of Capital Work in Progress (CWIP) in accounts. This could
potentially result in inaccurate CWIP disclosed in the books of accounts, due to non
capitalization and/or delayed capitalization of Property, plant and Equipment.

10.  The Company did not have an appropriate internal control system for obtaining external
balance confirmation on periodic basis. This could potentially result in inaccurate assets
&liabilities disclosed in the books of accounts.

A material weakness is a deficiency or a combination of deficiencies in internal Financial
Control over financial reporting, such that there is a- reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the- company's annual or interim financial statement will not be prevented
or detected in a timely basis.

Qualified Opinion

Being the Government undertaking, the Company's internal' Control process over financial
reporting is designed by way of Manual, Rules, Circulars and instruction from time to time and our
opinion is based on internal Control process over financial reporting as defined therein. During the
course of our Audit of "financial statement, we have on test check basis and on review Of adequacy
of internal control process over financial reporting have identified gaps which have -been-reported,
in Basis Of Qualified Opinion above."

In our opinion except for the effects/possible effects'-of the material misstatement in basis of
Qualified opinion above, the Company has maintained in all material respects adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as on 31st March,2022 based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Chartered Accountants of India.

We have considered the material weakness identified and reported above in determining the nature,
timing and extent of audit tests applied in our Audit of the March, 31,2022 Financial Statements of
the company and these material weakness does not affect our opinion on the standalone financial
statement of the Company.

For SADP AND CO
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 0112625W

Place:-Rajkot DIVYESH GUNVANTRAI BHUPTANI
Date: 31/07/2023 (PARTNER)
UDIN: 23113885BGUWMT 7449 Membership No. 113885
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GUJARAT WATER RESOURCES DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED, GANDHINAGAR
Balance Sheet as at 315 March, 2022

Particulars

Equity and Liabilities
Shareholders’ funds
Share Capital

Reserves and Surplus

Non-Current Liabilities
Other Long term Liabilities
Long Term Provisions

Current Liabilities
Short Term Borrowings
Trade Payables

Other Current Liabilities
Short Term Provisions

ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Fixed assets

Tangible Assets

Intangible Assets

Capital work-in-progress
Deferred tax assets (net)
Long Term Loans and Advances
Other Non-current Assets

Current assets

Investments

Inventories

Trade Receivables

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Short- term loans and advances
Other current assets

Total :

Total :

Notes

© 00 N O

10
11
12
35
13
14

15
16
17
18
19
20

As at
315t March, 2022

314861
-351174
-36313

96645

96645

319642
64926
3436144
0
3820712
3881044

473546

1201

990175

2141

609487

333318
2409868

0
22238
30768
758170
51892
608088

1471176

3881044

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

FOR SADP & Co.

Chartered Accountants

[Firm Registration N0.112625W]
Sd/-

CA Divyesh Bhuptani (Partner)
[Membership No.113885]

Place : Rajkot

Date :31-07-2023
UDIN:23113885BGUWMT7449
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[Amount in Rs. *000]
As at
31t March, 2021

314861
-338084
-23223

96666
0
96666

319642
65376
3363632
0
3748650
3822093

522251
1206
967129
0
809016
349949
2649551

0

22246
29845
690140
49451
380860
1172542
3822093

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Gujarat Water Resources Development Corporation Ltd.,

Sd/-
Director and Chairman
Sd/-

Sd/-
Managing Director

Sr.Accounts Officer(l/C)

Place : Gandhinagar
Date : 31-07-2023
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GUJARAT WATER RESOURCES DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED, GANDHINAGAR
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31t March, 2022

Particulars Notes

21
22

Revenue from Operations
Other Income

Total Revenue
Expenses:

23
24
10&11
25

Employee Benefits Expense
Financial Cost
Depreciation and Amortization Expense
Other Expenses
Total Expenses

Profit before prior period adjustments,
exceptional & extraordinary items and tax

Less:Exceptional Items

Profit before prior period adjustments,
extraordinary items and tax

Less:Extraordinary items

Profit before prior period adjustments, and
tax

(Add)/Less:
prior period adjustments
Profit before tax

31

Tax expense:
Current Tax
Excess/Short Provision of earlier years
Deferred tax

Profit (Loss) for the year
Earnings per equity share

Basic and Diluted 26

[Amount in Rs."000]

2021-22 2020-21
22652 36057
683480 297883
706132 333940
629787 205294
36482 52403
1397 1612
30664 33612
698330 292921
7802 41019
0 0
7802 41019
0 0
7802 41019
1276 82
9078 41101
0 0
0
-2141
-2141 0
11219 41101
3.56 13.05

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date annexed

FOR SADP & Co.

Chartered Accountants

[Firm Registration N0.112625W]
Sd/-

CA Divyesh Bhuptani

(Partner)

[Membership No.113885]

Place : Rajkot

Date :31-07-2023
UDIN:23113885BGUWMT7449

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Gujarat Water Resources Development Corporation Ltd.,

Sd/-
Director and Chairman

Sa/-
Managing Director

Sd/-
Sr.Accounts Officer(1/C)

Place : Gandhinagar
Date :31-07-2023
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GUJARAT WATER RESOURCES DEVELOPMENT CORPORTION LIMITED, GANDHINAGAR
Cash Flow Statement for the ended 31t March, 2022
[Amount in Rs. '000]

Particulars As at 315t March, As at 315t March,
2022 2021

A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net profit before taxation 9078 41101
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortization 1397 1612
Adjustment for fixed assets 5
Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets 0 0
Interest Income -30429 -57968
Operating Profit before working capital changes -19949 -15255
Adjustment for:
Trade receivable -943 -962
Long-term and short-term loans & advances 197088 -258742
Other non-current and current assets -210598 203794
(Increase) / decrease in inventories 8 397
Cash Generated from / (Unused in) operations 37647 -712959
Direct Tax Paid/Refund received (Net) 0 0
Net Cash from / (Used in) Operating Acitivites - (A) 37647 -712959
B NET CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Fixed Asset -75086 -182702
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 0 0
Investments 0 651027
Interest received 30429 57968
Net Cash from / (Used in) investing Acitivites - (B) -44657 526293
C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase in Capital reserve 0 0
Increase in Capital grant accounted as Deferred income 75040 182679
Net Cash from / (Used in) Financing Acitivites - (C) 75040 182679
Net Increase / Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
(A+B+C) 68030 -3986
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 690140 694126
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 758170 690140

1 The Cash Flow Statement is prepared in accordance with the format prescribed by Accounting Standard 3 as
prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies(Accounts)
Rules, 2014.
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2 Notes:-

Cash and cash equivalents included in the cash flow
statement comprises of:

A Balance with Schedule bank
In Current accounts and in Flexi-deposit accounts
Cheques on Hand
Remittance in transit

B. Other Balances with Banks
Bank Deposites with maturity of more than 12 months

Grand Total
FOR SADP & Co.

Chartered Accountants

[Firm Registration N0.112625W]
Sd/-

CA Divyesh Bhuptani

(Partner)

[Membership No.113885]

Place : Rajkot

Date :31-07-2023
UDIN:23113885BGUWMT7449
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As at 31st March,
2022

758170
0
0
758170

0
0
758170

As at 31st March,
2021

688561
0

1424
689985

155
155
690140

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Gujarat Water Resources Development

Corporation Ltd.,

Sd/- Sd/-
Director and Managing Director
Chairman
Sd/-
Sr.Accounts Officer(l/C)

Place : Gandhinagar
Date : 31-07-2023



GUJARAT WATER RESOURCES DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED,

GANDHINAGAR

Notes forming part of Financial Statements

1.

Significant Accounting Policies

(@)

Company Overview

Gujarat Water Resources Development Corporation Limited is a Government
Company engaged in the activities of:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Ground Water Investigation which includes geophysical survey and
investigation, study of aquifer parameters, water quality/level measurements,
monitoring of piezometers, chemical analysis of water samples, mechanical
analysis of soil and strata samples, preparation of recharge and conservation
maps, data collection and storage of ground water drawal, its effect on water
quality and research and development activities, etc. under various schemes
assigned by the Government of Gujarat. The Corporation has undertaken
works under World Bank aided National Hydrology Project Phase-11.

The Corporation had undertaken the works of Sujalam Sufalam Yojana,
entrusted by Government of Gujarat, which mainly includes construction of
distribution network, works related to restoration of check dams, dewatering
works and maintenance and repairs of pipelines and pumping stations
constructed under Sujalam Sufalam Yojana.

Government of Gujarat has entrusted to the corporation, the works of lift
irrigation schemes including accelerated Irrigation Benefited programme
(AIBP)to be carried out in Gujarat state and the works relating to drip
irrigation on tube wells operated by the Corporation and hired to the
beneficiary farmers’ Group/Co-operative Societies.

Drilling of Tubewells and installation of Machineries for the beneficiaries of
schedule caste, including exploratory Tubewells in different areas of state as
per the Programs approved by the State Government.

Drilling of tube wells and construction of lift irrigation schemes in different
areas of state as per the Programmes approved by the State Government.

Maintenance and repairs of tube wells and lift irrigationschemes and supply
of water to the irrigators at the rates fixed by Government of Gujarat from
time to time and hiring the tube wells to farmers’ Co-operative
Societies/Groups.

Maintenance of Stores and workshops to cater the Services of the Works
including maintenance works carried out.

Construction of tube wells and lift irrigationschemes on agency basis under
Gujarat pattern, D.R.D.A. and other Deposit works.
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(b)

(©)

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements:

The accompanying financial statements of the Corporation have been prepared under
the historical cost convention in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles in India and the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 as well to comply with
the Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Income and Expenditure

(i)

(i)

(iii)

The Corporation follows the Mercantile System of Accounting and
recognizes significant items of Income and Expenditure using the accrual
method of accounting.

Revenue recognition:

Revenue in respect of water charges receivable from farmers on account of
distribution of water during the summer season (21 February to 20" June)
has been recognized on pro-rata basis in accordance with policy followed by
the Corporation consistently, based on the estimate made by the management
and certified bythe firm of chartered accountants. The charges are measured
after taking into consideration the quantum of water supplied during the
summer season.

Deposits received for carrying out works on behalf of outside parties are
credited to Deposits Works account and expenditureincurred on the said
works are debited to Deposits works account. Centagecharges are computed
at predetermined percentage of direct expenditure incurred in connection with
the works related to deposit works, Gujarat pattern, D.R.D.A., Jilla Ayojan
Mandal, tubewells and lift irrigation scheme works. Centage charges are also
levied on expenditure incurred on works of Lift irrigation schemes and other
works funded by Govt. of Gujarat under AIBP Tribal schemes and other
works.( Except on Sujalam Sufalam Yojana Works)

Sales of Scrap material through publicauction are recognized as income upon
transfer of property in goods by the Corporation to buyer i.e. transfer of
significant risk and rewards of ownership to the buyer.

Sundry unclaimed deposits lying with the Corporation for more than five
years are considered aslapsed deposits and are recognized as income.

Interest Income is recognized on the time proportion basis taking into account
the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.

Expenditure on works:

Expenditure directly incurred by the Corporation on the various works like
Check dams, Sujalam Sufalam Project, L.l. Schemes,works of PINS etc., and
maintenance and repairs expenditure of pipe lines and pumping stations
constructed under Sujalam Sufalam Project is debited to respective schemes
and adjusted against grants received on actual basis for the said schemes.
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(d)

(€)

(f)

9)

Fixed Assets

Tangible Assets

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Fixed Assets are carried at their originalcost of acquisitionincluding
incidental expenses related to acquisition and installation, stipulated
percentage of storage charges upon stockissued from stores attributable
expenses for bringing the assets to their working conditions for intended use
and proportionate interest cost, if any, till date of intended use less
depreciation.

Cost of tube well includes cost of land, drilling expenses i.e. labour, material
and operating expenses of rigs, civil works, electrification and cost of
irrigationpipelines/ open channels and pumping machineries.

Cost of constructionunder a lift irrigationscheme includes cost of pump, civil
works, and electrification, cost of irrigation pipelines/open channels and
pumping machineries.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are stated at Cost of acquisition which comprises purchase price,
duties, levies and any directly attributable cost of bringing the intangible assets to its
working condition for the intended use less accumulated amortization.

Impairment of Assets

Consideration is given at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment of any carrying amount of Corporation’s fixed asset as
estimated. If such recoverable amount of the asset or recoverable amount of
cashgenerating unit to which the asset belongs is less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as
impairment loss and is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. If at the
Balance sheet date, there is an indication that if a previously assessed impairment
loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected
at the recoverable amount so reassessed.

Capital Work In Progress

(i)

(i)

Capital Work in Progress are carried at cost including directly attributable
expenses. Cost of such works is recognized in account on the basis of
measurements and running bills/final bills are paid or provided.

All the relevant expenditure in connection with capitalworks are initially
accounted as “Capital Work-in-progress” and considered as fixed assets upon
its completion and ready for intended use.

Depreciation

(i)

. Tangible Assets

The depreciation on Tangible Fixed Assets is provided on Written down
value method over the useful lives as prescribed under Schedule-Il of
Companies Act, 2013, Fixed assets costing up to 5000 are being fully
depreciated in the year of acquisition.
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(h)

(i)

(i)
(iii)

(iv)
(v)

The depreciation on additions/deletion is provided on pro-rata basis.

The depreciation on assets acquired, constructed or purchased during the year
out of grantreceived from the Government is provided on written down value
method over the useful lives as prescribed under Schedule- Il of Companies
Act, 2013.

Leasehold Land is amortized over a period of lease.

Loose tools disclosed under inventories are amortized at the rate of 10% of
Written down Value.

Intangible Assets

Perpetual software licenses are amortized at the rate of 40% on Written Down Value.

Inventories

Stores and spares are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost of Stores
and spares comprises of cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing them to
their respective present location and condition. Cost is determined on item wise
specific identification.

Government Grants

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Capital grants, received and utilized for the purpose of
acquisition/construction of various assets except check dams and capital
works of Sujalam Sufalam Yojana are carried to balance sheet under the head
“Deferred Income’” with corresponding debit to concerned asset account. The
amount equivalent to depreciation for the year on such asset is deducted from
the Capital Grant accounted as Deferred Income.

In case of publicutility recharge works for harnessing water, check dams,
Sujalam Sufalam Scheme Works etc., the cost of immovable properties
acquired/constructed /purchased out of grants are adjusted against the amount
of grant received. The amounts of movable assets acquired out of such grants
are carried to Balance Sheet under the head "Deferred Income’ with
corresponding debit to concerned asset. The amount equivalent to
depreciation for the year on such asset is deducted from the Capital Grant
accounted as Deferred Income.

In case of operation and maintenance of various pipelines of Sujalam Sufalam
Project, the expenditure incurred (net of water charges received from
irrigators of above schemes) towards maintenance activities, water charges
paid to Sardar Sarovar Narmada Nigam Ltd., energy charges paid / payable to
GEB have been adjusted against grant received from Government of Gujarat
for the same.

Grant received for drip irrigation System are utilized for pressurized
Irrigation Network scheme (PINS) works and expenses related thereto. Net
amount of such grant has been shown as unspent grant in Financial
statements.
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()

(k)

(iii)  Grant (Subsidy) received/receivable for maintenance and repairs of tubewells
and lift irrigation schemes is accounted for based on G.R.No.GWR-1099-
66(2) part-1/J-1 dated 01.08.2017 issued by Government of Gujarat for fixing
physical and financial norms for maintenance and repairs to tubewells and lift
irrigation schemes as well as administrative set up of field level and fixed
staff requirement for circles/divisions/subdivisions working under the
corporation. Excess/lesser amount of grant (subsidy) received by the
corporation during the year than grant (subsidy) receivable worked out as per
norms is added/deducted as the case may be, from grant (subsidy) receivable
from Government of Gujarat.

Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognized as expenses in the Statement of Profit
and Loss in the year in which the related service is rendered at the undiscounted
amount as and when it accrues.

Long term employee benefits and post employment benefits are recognized as
expenses in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which the related service
is rendered:

I. Corporation‘s Contribution towards provident fund is accounted for at pre-
determined rates and deposited in to trust administered by the GWRDC
Employees Provident Fund. The interest rate payable to the members of the
trust shall not be lower than the statutory rate of interest declared by the
Central Government under the Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous
Provisions Act, 1952. The shortfall if any, is to be made good by the
Corporation.

ii. Gratuity and Leave encashment benefits are charged to the Statement of
Profit and Loss based on actuarial valuation as at the balance sheet date made
by the independent actuaries.

iii. In respect of employee on deputation from Government, the contribution
towards leave salary and pension are made to Government at predetermined
rates fixed by A.G. Office and are charged to Statement of Profit and Losson
receipt of details.

Taxation

Current year tax is provided based on taxable income computed in accordance with
the provisions of Income tax act, 1961.

Deferredtax is recognized, subject to the consideration of prudence, on timing
difference, being the difference between taxable income and accounting income that
originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent period.
Deferred tax assets are recognized on unabsorbed depreciation and carryforward of
losses based on virtual certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be
available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.
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(1)

(m)

(n)

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions involving substantial degreeof estimation in measurement are recognized
when there is a presentobligation as a result of past events and it is probable that
there willbe an outflow of resources. Contingent Liabilities are not recognized but
are disclosed in the notes. Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in
financial statements.

Leases

The Corporation’s significant leasing arrangements are in respect of operating leases
for Tubewells/Lift Irrigation Schemes. The leasing arrangements are usually
renewable by mutual consent at agreed terms. The aggregate lease rent receivable is
charged as Hire charges in Statement of Profit & Loss. The corporation has assets
having leasing period of 99 years/ The said assets are amortized considering lease
period.

Interest on Government Loan:

Interest on Government loans sanctioned up to 31-03-1992 has been provided in the
accounts as per the interest rate prescribed in government resolution issued up to
31-03-1992 and on loans for which no interest rate has been prescribed by
government in GR issued after 31-03-1992, provision for interest has been made on
the basis of rates prescribed by Finance Department of Govt. of Gujarat dated
31/03/1992.
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2

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

GUJARAT WATER RESOURCES DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED, GANDHINAGAR
Notes forming part of Financial Statements

Share Capital

[Amount in Rs. '000]

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2022 March, 2021
Authorised
40,00,000 (P.Y. 40,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs 100/- each 400000 400000
Issued, Subscribed & Fully Paid up
31,48,612 (P.Y. 31,48,612) Equity Shares of Rs 100/- each 314861 314861
314861 314861

Note:

During the period of five financial years immediately preceeding the Balance Sheet date, the company has not:
(i)  allotted any fully paid up equity shares by way of bonus shares;

(if)  alloted any equity shares pursuant to any contract without payment being received in cash.

(iii)  bought back any equity shares.

Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the

reporting period

As at 31st March, 2022

As at 31st March, 2021

Particulars Amount Rs. Amount Rs.
Number '000 Number '000

At the beginning of the year 3148612 314861 3148612 314861

Add

Shares issued for Cash or Right Issue or 0 0 0 0

Bonus

Exercise of Share Option under ESOS / 0 0

ESOP 0 0

Shares issued in Business Combination 0 0
0 0

Less

Shares bought back/Redemption etc. 0 0 0 0

31
At the end of the year 48 612 314861 3148612 314861

Rights, Preferences and Restrictions

The authorised share capital of the company has only one class of shares referred to as 'equity shares' having par
value of * 100/- each. The right / previleges to equity shareholders are general in nature and defined under the
Articles of Association of the Company and as allowed under Companies Act, 2013.

The equity shareholders shall have:

(i)  right to vote in shareholders' meeting where voting is to be made on a show of hands , every member present
in person and holder of equity share, shall have one vote and in case of poll, voting right shall be in
proportions to the shares in the paid up capital of the Company;

right to receive dividend in proportion to the amount of capital paid up on the shares

(i) held.

The shareholders are not entitled to exercise any voting right either personally or through proxy at any meeting of
the Company in cases calls or other sums payable have not been paid.

If the Company shall be wound up, the distribution of available assets/losses to the equity shareholders shall be in

proportion to the paid up capital.
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(€)

(f)

List of shareholders holding more than 5% shares

Number of Equity Shares

% of holding

Particulars

As at

As at

31st March, 2022

31st March, 2021

31st March, 2022

31st March, 2021

Government of Gujarat
(Along with its nominees)

3148612

3148612

100%

Shareholding of promoters

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year

% Change during

Name

No of shares

% of total shares

the year

Government of Gujarat

3,148,612

100

(Along with its nominees)

Reserves & Surplus

100%

[Amount in Rs. '000]

As at 31st March, As at 31st
2022 March, 2021
Capital Reserves
(@) Receipt by Sale of Capital Assets
Opening Balance 9596 9596
Add:Additions during the year 0 0
Less:Deduction during the year 0 0
Closing balance 9596 9596
(b) Receipt by Sale of Government tube wells
Opening Balance 4089 4089
Add:Additions during the year 0 0
Closing balance 4089 4089
Total Closing balance [Refer note 29(c)] 13685 13685
Capital grant accounted as deferred income
Opening balance 1452810 1416614
Add: Additions during the year 75040 182679
Less: Depreciation on the assets created out of grants (Refer Note :10 99348 146482
&11)
Less: Deduction during the year 0 0
Closing balance 1428502 1452810
Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Balance as per previous financial statement -1804580 -1845680
Add : Profit for the year 7802 41019
Less: Tax expense of prior period 2141 0
Add : Adjustment of Prior Period 1276 82
Balance available for appropriation -1793361 -1804579
Less : Appropriation 0 0
Net surplus -1793361 -1804579
-351174 -338084
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Other Long-term Liabilities [Amount in Rs. '000]

As at 31st March, As at 31st
Particulars 2022 March, 2021
Trade payables
Others 0 0
Balances of government department/agencies[Refer note 37(c)] 95260 95260
Other liabilities 12 12
Employee Deposit (Refer Note no. 37(b)) 1373 1394
96645 96666

There are no Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises to whom the Company owes dues which are outstanding for
more than specified days as at the Balance Sheet date. Further, the company has neither paid nor payable any
interest to any Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise on the Balance sheet date.

Long Term Provisions [Amount in Rs. '000]
Particul As at 31st March, As at 31st
articulars 2022 March, 2021

Provision for Employee Benefits

Leave Encashment -150033 -180438

Gratuity -108375 -297042

-258408 -477480

Less : Amount disclosed under the head Short term provisions 0 0

Less : Amount disclosed under the head Long term Loans and Advances -258408 -477480

0 0

Short term Borrowings [Amount in Rs. '000]
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st

March, 2022 March, 2021
Government of Gujarat Loan (Unsecured ) 319642 319642
319642 319642

The Term loan of Rs. 319642/-thousand payable to Govt. of Guj. , which was written off in the year 1996-97 have
been written back in the year 2015-16, based on the observations of CAG Audit. The same loan is overdue as it
become payable on the expiry of tenure of the respective loan. In the absence of relevant papers and documents, the
periodicity of loan, rate of interest and security, if any, could not be ascertained, mentioned and effect thereof, if
any, on the financial statement of the corporation could not be ascertained.

Trade Payables [Amount in Rs. '000]
Particul As at 31st As at 31st
articulars March, 2022 March, 2021

For Goods and Services
Others(Refer note 37(b)) 64926 65376

64926 65376

There are no Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises to whom the Company owes dues which are outstanding for
more than specified days as at the Balance Sheet date. Further, the company has neither paid nor payable any
interest to any Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise on the Balance sheet date.
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Other Current Liabilities (Refer Note No. 37(b))

[Amount in Rs. '000]

. As at 31st As at 31st
Particulars March, 2022 March, 2021
Unspent capital Grant 1329993 1019976
Unspent Grant (Geo Wing) 356005 721396
Unpaid Expenses 104065 41891
Deposit works 1220 1220
Advance from customers 103414 110858
Deposits from contractors [Refer note 37(b) & 37(c)] 211156 173570
Statutory Dues 4003 4133
Interest payble (overdue) to Govt. of Gujrat 1307167 1270707
Interest - GSFS Refundable to GOG 0 0
Other Payables

Payables to Staff 3529 3484
Others 15592 16397
3436144 3363632
Short Term Provision [Amount in Rs. '000]
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2022 March, 2021

For Employee Benefits (Refer note 32)
Leave Encashment
Gratuity
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12  Capital Work —In Progress

[Amount in Rs. '000]

As at Additions | Deductions/ | Capitalised As at
Particulars 01/04/2021 Adjustment 31/03/2022
Work in progress
Construction of
1 T/WS/L.LS. (out of 577469 67391 51994 592867
Grant)
Construction of PINS
2| (out of Grant) 389660 7648 0 397308
Total: 967129 75040 0 51994 990175
Previous Year: 872545 182679 0 88095 967129

13 Long Term Loans and Advances

(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)

[Amount in Rs. '000]

As at 31st  As at 31st
Particulars March, March,

2022 2021
Deposit in High Court & Principal Sr. Civil Court 22873 22873
Telephone Deposit 35 35
Security Deposit with GEB 328171 308628
Funded Gratuity and Leave Salary Plan (Amount in Excess of Liability) 258408 477480

609487 809016

14  Other Non Current Assets

[Amount in Rs. '000]

Asat 31st  Asat 31st
Particulars March, March,
2022 2021
(Unsecured, Considered good)
Expenditure Incurred in excess of Grant [Refer note
37(d)] 333318 349949
333318 349949
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15 Current Investments [Amount in Rs. '000]

As at 31st  Asat 31st
Particulars March, March,
2022 2021

Investments in Gujarat State Financial Services Ltd (GSFS) Term
Deposite (More Than 6 Months)

0 0
16 Inventories [Amount in Rs. '000]
(Valued at cost or NRV, whichever is less and certified by the
Management)
Asat 31st  Asat 31st
Particulars March, March,
2022 2021
Stores and Spares (Refer note 30) 22166 22166
Loose Tools 72 80
22238 22246
17  Trade Receivables [Amount in Rs. '000]

(Unsecured, Considered good, unless otherwise stated)

Asat 31st  As at 31st

Particulars March, March,
2022 2021
Outstanding trade receivables (refer note 37(b) & 37 (¢)) 30788 29845
30788 29845
18 Cash and Bank Equivalents [Amount in Rs. '000]
As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 31%t March,
2022 2021
Cash and cash equivalents
A. Balance with Schedule bank
In Current accounts and in Flexi-deposit accounts 758170 688561
Cheques on Hand 0 0
Remittance in transit 0 1424
758170 689985
B. Other Balances with Banks
Bank Deposites with maturity of more than 12 months 0 155
0 155
758170 690140
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20

21

Short-term loans and advances [Amount in Rs. '000]

(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2022 March, 2021
A. Loans & Advance to suppliers, contractors &
Advances NGO 17849 17849
Others Advance to Staff 4673 4724
B. Receivable from Govt Authority 21580 20002
C. Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to
be received :
Considered Good 7790 6876
Considered Doubtful 0 0
Less: Provision for doubtful advances 0 0
7790 6876
51892 49451
Other Current Assets [Amount in Rs. '000]
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2022 March, 2021
Interest Receivable 6234 7665
Maintenance & Repairs Subsidy Receivable from
Government of GUJParat ’ 245386 17830
[R)zcgzl;/i?ble form Govt.ofGuj.for unclaimed 350000 350000
Prepaid Expenses 6385 5290
Other Receivables 83 76
608088 380860
Revenue from Operations
(Valued and certified by the Management) [Amount in Rs. '000]
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
Sale of Goods
Water charges 371 496
Sale of Services
Hire Charges - Rent of tubewells& LIS 8347 8488
Other Operating Revenue
Subsidy for M&R to tubewells/LIS (Refer Note No. 27) 0 0
Centage / Overhead Charges 11911 26416
Others 2023 657
22652 36057
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23

24

Other Income [Amount in Rs. '000]
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
Interest Income
Interest on FDR with GSFS and Banks 16001 43509
Interest on Earstwhile GEB Advances 14428 14459
Interest on Late Payment of Water Charges 14 23
Interest on income tax refund 18 0
30461 57991
Other Non Operating Income
Others 5462 21254
Sundry Balances Written Back 0 0
Subsidy for M&R to tubewells/LIS (Refer Note No. 27) 647557 218638
683480 297883
Employee benefit expenses [Amount in Rs. '000]
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
Salaries and Wages [For managerial Remuneration (Refer Note
34)] 165234 155811
Contributions to P.F. (Refer note 32) 47845 53303
E.P.F. 40 50
Gratuity -318666 -30271
Leave Encashment 91280 18695
Staff Welfare Expenses 672 7706
629787 205294
Finance cost
[Amount in Rs. '000]
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
Interest on Government of Gujarat Loan 36460 36460
Interest - GSFS - Refundable to GOG 0 15926
Bank Charges 22 17
Interest On gratuity 0 0
36482 52403
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25 Other Expenses [Amount in Rs. '000]
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
Repairs Others 7213 5868
Power & Fuel 979 842
Rent 478 492
Travelling and Conveyance 2240 3031
Maintenance and Repairs to tubewells/ LI schemes 8532
Rates & Taxes 516 766
Professional Fees 3142 3014
Payment to Auditors* 331 224
Stationery & Printing 11845 1294
Advertisement 2280 808
Telephone & Trunk Calls 400 466
Storage Charges 233 164
Miscellaneous Expenses 2475 2120

330664 33612

Payment to Auditors as:*
Statutory Audit Fees 330 224
For reimbursement of expenses 0 0
330 224

26 Earning per Share
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
Net Profit/(Loss) for the year (After Tax) [Amount in Rs.

'000] 11219 41101
Number of equity shares 3148612 3148612
Nominal value of the share 100 100
Basic and diluted Earning per Share (Rs.) 3.56 13.05



217.

28.

29.

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(€)

Revenue Grant (subsidy)

Narmada Water Resources Water Supply and Kalpsar Department, Govt. of Gujarat has
issued G.R. No. GWR-1099-66 (2) Part-1 /J-1 dated 01/08/2017 for fixing physical and
financial norms for maintenance and repairs to tubewells and lift irrigations, field level, and
fixed establishment etc. of the corporation and made it effective from the year 2011-12 and
onwards. Accordingly, corporation has worked out total grant (subsidy) for maintenance and
repairs to tubewells & Lift Irrigation Schemes for the year 2021-22 amounting to Rs.
647557/- thousand, (P.Y.Rs.218638/-thousand) as shown under other income.

Government of Gujarat had entrusted to the corporation the Works of SujalamSufalam pipe
line project Works in the Year 2003 and onwards. The corporation had deployed staff to
carry out The Said Works and accordingly, pay and allowances paid to the staff employed
for the Said project had been charged to the said Project for which approval of Board of
Directors was obtained in February, 2005 and also intimated to Govt.of Gujarat. However,
CAG had objected that the pay &allowancescannot be charged to the Project works unless
approved by Govt.of Gujarat. Finance Department Govt. of Gujarat. After due deliberations,
allowed the corporation to charge pay &allowances incurredonSujalamSufalam Yojana Upto
the Year 2006-07 to the Project Works (Letter No. SSC-1/GWRDC/2013/1175/K-3/Dt.
25/3/15 of NWRWS and Kalpsar Dept.).Hence, the expenditure incurred for salary and
allowances debited to SujalamSufalam project since 2007-08 to 2015-16 are now to be
charged to profit & loss account under prior period expenses. But, since the details are under
compilation, the amount is not identified and the effect thereof on financial statements is
unascertained.

Fixed assets and Depreciation

The Corporation has identified 2457 unserviceable tube wells and 15 L.I Schemes including
the tube wells / L.I Schemes constructed out of grants (P.Y. 2427 tube wells and 15 L.I
Schemes) as at the balance sheet date. The depreciation has been provided as per Schedule 11
of the Companies Act, 2013 on the same.

Conveyance deeds in respect of land acquired from farmers by the Corporation for
construction of tube wells and lifts irrigation Schemes are yet to be executed in some cases,
details thereof are not available.

In the absence of details regarding cost of acquisition of certain assets including Tubewells
sold, the adjustment entries on account of profit/loss on sale of such assets and
corresponding effect in asset account has not been given by the Corporation. Consequently,
the amount realized on sale of asset to the tune of Rs. 13,685/- Thousand (P.Y Rs.13,685
Thousand) have been credited to capital reserve account.

In respect of some of the tube wells /Lift Irrigation Scheme constructed out of grant before
01.04.2014, the corporation could not compile the information related to its cost of
construction and date of construction and as a matter of prudence, with effect from the year
2010-11, the corporation has commenced charging depreciation on total cost of such tube
wells/ lift irrigation schemes and has been deducted from the capital grants accounted as
Differed Income.

The Corporation has not compiled the requisite relevant information with regard to
Impairment of Assets as required by AS 28 and therefore the Corporation has not given any
effect in respect thereof in the financial statements (amount unascertained).
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30.

31.

32.

Inventories

The physical verification of inventory, comprising of stores, spares and other materials, as at
31st March,2022 has been carried out and the value thereof has been worked out to
Rs.22,226thousand (P.Y.Rs.22,226/-thousand)as against the Book Value of Rs.22,166/-
thousand (P.Y.Rs.22,166/-thousand) This has resulted in to discrepancy ofRs.60/-thousand
being increase in value of stock (P.Y. Rs.60/-thousand being increase in value of stock). No
effect has been given in the current year’s accounts.

Prior period adjustments
The details of the prior period adjustments are as under:-
[Amount in "000]

Prior Period Expenses

Particulars 2021-22 | 2020-21
Grant (Subsidy) For Maintenance and Repairs to Tubewells 0 0
Interest on Government Loan 0 0
Software Training expenses 0 0
Diesel expense 44 0
Miscellaneous Expenses 10 0
Rates & Taxes 0 0
Rent 0 0
Salaries and Wages 204 0
Depreciation Expenses 0 0
Travelling Expenses 696 0
Total(A) 954 0

Prior Period Income
Bank Interest & Other interest 0 0
Misc Income 2133 82
Centage Charges 0 0
Hire Charges 0 0
Depreciation 96 0
Water Charges 0 0
Total(B) 2230 82
Prior Period Adjustment(Net)(A)-(B) 1276 82

Employee Benefits obligations
Defined Contribution Plan

The Corporation offers its Employees, benefits under defined contribution plan in the form
of provident fund, which covers all employees on roll. Contributions at predetermined rates
are made to GWRDC Employees Provident Fund both by employees as well as corporation.

A sum of Rs.47,845/-thousand (P.Y.Rs.53,303/-thousand) has been charged to statement of
profit and loss in this respect.
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® Defined Benefit Plan

The Corporation has a defined benefit plans comprising of Gratuity and Leave Encashment.
Gratuity plan is administered through GWRDC Employees Gratuity Trust Fund and Life
Insurance Corporation of India whereas Leave Encashment plan is administered through
GWRDC Retirement Benefits & Leave Encashment Trust and Life Insurance Corporation of
India.

The following table set out the funded status of the retirement benefit plans and the amounts
recognized in the financial statements.

[Amount in Rs.000]

. Leave Encashment
Gratuity Funded Funded
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21 2021-22 2020-21
I. Reconciliation of Opening & Closing
balances of the Present value of the
Defined Benefit Obligation.
= Present Value of Defined Benefit
Obligation at the Beginning of the year. 598 669 765579 348 107 385595
= Service Cost (Inc. Past Service Cost) 309 081 11 283 79 902 1058
» Interest Cost 29 257 41724 14 836 21015
= Actuarial (gain)/losses on obligations (29 574) (18 999) 31333 26 095
= (Benefits Paid) (173 010) | (200918) (83 360) (85 655)
. Pres_ent_VaIue of Defined Benefit 811 048 593 669 390 818 348 107
Obligation at year end
Il. Reconciliation of fair value of Plan
Assets
. Falr_va_lueof Plan assets as at the 895 711 850 132 528 546 500 194
beginning of the year
= Expected return of plan assets 44 623 46 823 24 183 27 261
= Contributions by employer 130 000 173 900 60 000 83 600
= (Benefits paid) (173 010) | (200 918) (83 360) (85 655)
= Actuarial gain (loss) on plan assets 22 079 16 773 11 482 3146
= Fair value of pl ts at the end of
tha; ry‘ézr”e Ot plan assels atthe end o 919423 | 895711 | 540850 | 528546
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Gratuity Funded

Leave Encashment

Funded
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21 2021-22 2020-21
I11. Amount Recognized in Balance Sheet.
= Liability at the end of the year (811 048) | (598 669) | (390818) | (348 107)
* Fai f
Fair value of plan assets at the end o 919 423 895 711 540 850 598 546
the year
" ized in Bal Sheet.-
Amount Recognized in Balance Sheet.- | 0 070 | 297042 | 150032 | 180439
surplus/(deficit)
V. Expenses recognized during the year
= Service Cost (Inc. Past Service Cost) 309 081 11 283 79 902 1058
» Interest Cost 29 257 41724 14 836 21015
= Actuarial (gain)/loss 24 972 (35772) 19851 22 949
= Expected return on Plan Assets (44 643) (46 823) 24183 27 261
= Total included in ‘Employee Benefit
Expenses Paid by LIC of India/| 318666 (29 588) 90 405 17 761
GWRDC Gratuity Trust
= Contributed by the Corporation (683) 875 934
= TOTAL incl in Empl fi
OTAL included in Employee benefit | -, 0 cos | (30271) | 91280 18 695
expenses
V. Actual Assumptions
= Mortality Table (LIC) Indian Indian Indian Indian
Assured Assured Assured Assured
Lives Lives Lives Lives
Mortality | Mortality | Mortality | Mortality
(2012-14) | (2006-08) | (2012-14) | (2006-08)
Ult. Ult. Ult. Ult.
= Discount Rate (per annum) 5.66% 5.18% 5.66% 5.18%
= Rate of Escalation in Salary 5.50% 5.50% 5.50% 5.50%
33. Segment Reporting

The Corporation is mainly engaged in drilling and construction of tube wells/Lift irrigation
Schemes and works entrusted by government of Gujarat, ground water management,
operation maintenance and repairs of tube wells including grant (subsidy), supply of water
to irrigators and related ancillary activities. Accordingly, there are no reportable segments as
per Accounting Standard-17 “Segment Reporting” issued by The Institute of Chartered

Accountants of India.
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34, Related Party Disclosures
As per AS-18, issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the disclosures of
transactions with the related parties as defined in the Accounting Standard are given below:
List of related parties and Relationship:
Sr. . . .
NO Name of Related Party Period Relationship
1 | Shri K. A. Patel (Chairman) From 09.08.2016 to 12.10.2021
2 | Shri K. B. Rabadia (Chairman) From 22.12.2021
3 | Dr. Mahesh singh, IFS From 24.06.2019 to 23.08.2021
4 | Shri K. S. Randhawa, IFS From 23.08.2021 to 02.03.2022
5 | Shri Prabhav Joshi, IAS From 28.04.2022
6 | ShriD. A. Thakkar From 06.03.2020 to 25.01.2022 Individual
_ : exercising
7 | Shri H. U. Kalyani From 25.01.2022 Significant
8 | Shri B. M. Modi From 10.05.2017 to 31.12.2021 influence by
9 | shriS.J. Solanki From 31.12.2021 representations
10 | ShriJ. S. Joshi F 21.09.2020 to 05.01.2022 on Board of
. 5. Joshi rom 2205, it Directors.
11 | Shri R. K. Joshi From 05.01.2022
12 | Dr. Dhimant Vyas From 06.03.2020 to 14.07.2021
13 | Shri M. R. Patel From 14.07.2021 to 30.05.2022
14 | ShriJ. K. Trivedi From 30.05.2022
15 | Shri V. S. Patel From 26.06.2020 to 31.03.2022
16 | Shri R. M. Patel From 01.04.2022

Transactions with related parties and outstanding balances on year end date.

[Amount in " 000]

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
Managerial Remuneration 2126 2001
Directors’ Sitting Fees - -
Interest on loan 36460 36460
Outstanding Balances as at March, 31

- Due to Company 586584 375403
- Due by Company 1626809 1590349
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35.

36.

37.

Deferred Tax

In absence of virtual certainty regarding future taxable income, the Corporation has not
recognized deferred tax assets on unabsorbed depreciation and unabsorbed losses
Corporation has recorded deferred tax asset/liability on account of other timing differences.

[Amount in " 000]

Deferred Tax Assets arising from: 2021-22 | 2020-21

Expenses charged in the financial Statement but allowable for tax
purpose when paid in future years

Depreciation 2141

Others - -

Net deferred Tax Assets/(Liability) 2141 -

Contingent Liabilities and Commitments:
[Amount in "000]

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21

(@ Contingent Liabilities -

(i) Estimated Amount of Compensation payable to

@) Employees : Unascertainable | Unascertainable

(b) Other than Employees 48161 58369
(it) TDS under Income Tax (Based on TRACES) 3856 1640

(b) Commitments
(1) Estimated Liabilities on Capital commitments 72466 67036

Trade Receivables, Loans and Advances and Liabilities

@) In the absence of requisite details and information with regard to some of the
balances of Trade Receivables, Loans & Advances which remained outstanding for recovery
since long, the company has not provided for the Bad & Doubtful debts / Receivables. Since
, the amount is not identified , the effect thereof on financial statements is not ascertained.

(b) The Corporation has not compiled the figures/balances in subsidiary ledgers/registers
with the following balances in general ledger and the same are to be reconcile therewith and
therefore, effect thereof on the financial statements, if any and their ageing could not be
ascertained.

[Amount in "000]

Sr
No

Note Amountas | Amount as at

Note Heading

Particulars Ref. at 31.03.2022| 31.03.2021

Employee Deposit 4 | Other Long term Liabilities 1373 1394

Trade payables- others 7 | Trade Payables 64926 65376

Unspent Capital Grant 8 | Other Current Liabilities 1329993 1019976
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Sr Particulars Note Note Headin Amountas | Amount as at
No Ref. g at 31.03.2022| 31.03.2021
4 | Unspent Grant (Geo Wing) 8 Other Current Liabilities 356005 721396
5 | Advance from Customers 8 | Other Current Liabilities 103413 110858
6 | Deposits from Contractors 8 Other Current Liabilities 211156 173570
7 | Statutory Dues 8 Other Current Liabilities 4003 4133
8 |Payables to staff 8 Other Current Liabilities 3529 3484
9 |Payable to Others 8 Other Current Liabilities 15592 16397
10 |Receivable from Govt. 19 |Short Term Loans & 21580 20002
Authority Advances.
11 |Expenditure Incurred in 14 | Other Non-Current Assets 333318 349949
excess of Grant
12 | Advances to suppliers, 19 | Short Term Loans and 17849 17849
Contractors & NGO Advances
13 | Advances to Others 19 | Short Term Loans and 7790 6876
Advances
14 | Prepaid Expenditure 20 | Other Current Assets 6385 5290
15 | Capital Work in Progress 12 | Capital Work-in-Progress 990175 967129
16 |Unpaid Exp 8 | Other Current Liabilities 104065 41891
17 |Deposit Work 8 Other Current Liabilities 1220 1220
18 | Govt. of Gujarat Loan 6 Short term Borrowings 319642 319642
19 |Interest receivable 20 | Other Current Assets 6234 7665
(c) The balance of unspent and Expenditure Incurred in excess of Grant, trade receivables,
other receivables, trade payables, deposits receivable/payable, deposit works, advances
given/received, loans and advances, T.D.S. on income and amount payable to/receivable
from Government departments/agencies are subject to confirmation and adjustments if any.
(d) The expenditure incurred in excess of grants received from Government of Gujarat by the
Corporation on National Hydrology Project Phase-1, works carried out under 500/11, 500/111
tubewells program, 100 tube wells program, modernization of old tubewells, logged area
tube wells at karamsad etc. have been shown as expenditure incurred in excess of grant
under the head “Other Non-current Assets”. (Note No. 14)
38. Interest on GEB Deposit:

GWRDC has carried out the works of SujalamSufalam pipeline project entrusted by The
Government of Gujarat in the year 2003 & onwards. Corporation had deposited security
deposit with GEB, Which was debited to SujalamSufalam scheme. In financial Statement of
FY 2018-19& 2021-22 Corporation has debited Security Deposit amounting to 32.82 crore
to Security Deposit with GEB Account (disclosed in note 13 “Long term loans and
advances”) by crediting unspent grant SujlamSuflam Scheme based on CAG Audit
Obervation. Corporation has considered interest received from GEB on security deposits as
income of the corporation under the head ‘Other Income’ in the financial statements.

72



39.  Additional information, to the extent applicable, required under of Part-1l of the Schedule 111

to the Companies Act, 2013.
[Amount in * thousand]
) As at As at
Particulars
31/03/2022 31/03/2021

(@ The value of imports calculated on CIF basis for:

Q) Raw Materials NIL NIL

(i)  Components & Spares NIL NIL
(b) Expenditure in Foreign Currency. NIL NIL
(© The amount remitted in Foreign Currency as Dividend NIL NIL
(d) Earning in Foreign Exchange NIL NIL

40.  During the year, the corporation has recognized revenue on account of water charges
amounting to Rs.371/-thousand (P.Y. Rs.496/-thousand) and recovered water charges from
the farmers amounting to Rs.342/-thousand (P.Y. Rs.460/-thousand) including amount
received of earlier years.

41.  During the year 2019-20 the corporation has deposited Rs. 35 Crore to the Finance
Department of GOG vide their letter APB/102019/GSFS/862/K dated 15.10.2019. The said
amount has been deposited against the unclaimed/unpaid deposit lying with the corporation
from various parties. The Corporation has shown the said amount in Note 20 under the
group “Other Current Assets” as “Receivable from Govt. of Gujarat for Unclaimed
Deposit”.

42.  Previous year’s figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to correspond

with the current year’s classification / disclosure.

FOR SADP & Co. FOR G.W.R.D.C.LTD. GANDHINAGAR
Chartered Accountants Gujarat Water Resources Development Corporation
Limited.

[Firm Registration N0.112625W]

Director and Chairman Managing Director
(Audit Committee)

CA Divyesh Bhuptani

(Partner)

[Membership No0.113885) Senior Accounts Officer
(1/C)

Place : Rajkot Place : Gandhinagar

Date :31/07/2023 Date :31/07/2023

UDIN:23113885BGUWMT7449
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Gujarat Water Resources Development Corporation Limited
AA (An undertaking of Govt. of Gujarat)
Nr. Bij Nigam, Sector — 10/A, Gandhinagar — 382010
Phone: - 079-23252058, 23252060
www.gwrdc.gujart.gov.in
CIN : U45300GJ1971SGC001892 E-mail : md-gwrdc@gujarat.gov in
Form No. MGT-11

Proxy form

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

W

Name of the Member(s) :

Registered Address :
E-mail Id : Folio No/Client ID : DP ID:

I/We, being the member/shareholder of the above named company,hereby appoint;

Name : E-mail Id:
Address:
Signature :

as my/ our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 47"Adjourned
Annual General Meeting of the company, to be held on the 2157Sep, 2023 at Gandhinagar, Gujarat
and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

Resolution No

Sr. ) Vote
Resolution(S) -
No. For Against

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement
(Standalone) of the Company for the financial year ended on
31t March, 2022 together with the reports of Board of
Directors, Auditor and C&AG thereon

* Applicable for investors holding shares in Electronic form.

. . ST Affix Revenue
Signed this 21°'day of Sep,2023. Stamps

Signature of Shareholder Signature of Proxy holder  Signature of the shareholder across
Revenue Stamp

Note:

1) This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the
Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the
Meeting.

2) The proxy need not be a member of the company
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Gujarat Water Resources Development Corporation Limited

éh (An undertaking of Govt. of Gujarat)
Nr. Bij Nigam, Sector — 10/A, Gandhinagar — 382010
W Phone: - 079-23252058, 23252060
www.gwrdc.gujart.gov.in
CIN : U45300GJ1971SGC001892 E-mail : md-gwrdc@gujarat.gov in

ATTENDANCE SLIP

(To be handed over at the entrance of the meeting hall)

Annual General Meeting on 215TSep, 2023.

Full name of the members attending

(In block capitals)

Ledger Folio No./Client ID No. No. of shares held:

Name of Proxy

(To be filled in, if the proxy attends instead of the member)

| hereby record my presence at the 47"Adjourned Annual General Meeting of the Gujarat Water
Resources Development Corporation Limited (GWRDC), at Gandhinagar, Gujarat on 2157 Sep,

2023.

(Member’s /Proxy’s Signature)

Note:

1) Members are requested to bring their copies of the Annual Report to the meeting, since
further copies will not be available.

2) The Proxy, to be effective should be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not
less than FORTY EIGHT HOURS before the commencement of the meeting.

3) A Proxy need not be a member of the Company.

4) In the case of joint holders, the vote of the senior who tenders a vote, whether in person or
by Proxy, shall be accepted to the exclusion of the vote of the other joint holders. Seniority
shall be determined by the order in which the names stand in the Register of Members.

5) The submission by a member of this form of proxy will not preclude such member from

attending in person and voting at the meeting.
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Gujarat Water Resources Development Corporation Limited

AA (An undertaking of Govt. of Gujarat)
Nr. Bij Nigam, Sector — 10/A, Gandhinagar — 382010
W Phone: - 079-23252058, 23252060
www.gwrdc.gujart.gov.in
CIN : U45300GJ1971SGC001892 E-mail : md-gwrdc@gujarat.gov in

The Companies Act, 2013
Consent by Share Holders for Shorter Notice
[As per Section 101(1)]
To
The Board of Directors
Gujarat water resources development
Corporation limited (GWRDC)

Nr. Bij Nigam, Sector — 10A, Gandhinagar

l,

holding Equity Share of Rs.10 eachin the company hereby give consent, pursuant
to Section 101(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 to hold 47"Adjourned Annual General Meeting of
Gujarat Water Resources Development Corporation Limited (GWRDC)on 215TSep, 2023at the
Gandhinagar, Gujarat or any adjourned thereof at a Shorter Notice.

Signature: .......ooooviiiiiii

Name:

Date:21/09/2023.

GOVERNMENT CENTRAL PRESS, GANDHINAGAR
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